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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
DIRECTORS AND OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

The Board of Directors at the date of signing were:
Desmond E Crowley, BA (Mod) Econ, FCMA

Desmond joined Bank of Ireland Group in 1988. Inréfha2000, became a member of the Group Executivertitiee,
on being appointed Chief Executive of Retail Bagkireland. Appointed Chief Executive of UK Finarlc&ervices,
Director of Bristol & West plc and Bank of IrelandK Holdings plc in January 2006. Appointed Directafr the
Ultimate Parent in October 2006, until his retirem&om this position in June 2011. Appointed ade€lExecutive
Officer — Retail (Ireland & UK) in May 2009 and @fiExecutive - Retail UK Division in March 2012. i&h
Executive Officer of Bank of Ireland (UK) plc. A Eictor of First Rate Exchange Services, the forexghange joint
venture with UK Post Office. He is also a DireatdiNew Ireland Assurance Company plc.

Jim Hickey, FCCA, MBA

Jim was appointed to the position of Director ob@r Finance at Bank of Ireland Group in October2Qim has
significant Banking and Financial Services expeareeaving joined the Bank of Ireland Group from telisBank
where he served as divisional Chief Financial @ffiand prior to that, Group Financial Controlleef&e joining
Ulster Bank, Jim was EMEA Director of OperationdHswlett Packard Financial Services where he ledotherations
teams across thirty five countries. Before thaty Beld a number of senior finance roles at GE @apjperating across
Europe, the UK and Ireland. Jim is a Fellow of @teartered Association of Certified Accountants anltls an MBA
from the UCD Michael Smurfit Graduate Business $tho

Andrew Keating, FCA

Andrew was appointed as a Director of Bank of mdlaJK Holdings plc in June 2011. He joined Bankl@fland
Group in 2004, prior to which he held a numbereafisr finance roles, including Chief Accountantiwitister Bank,
having qualified as a Chartered Accountant witthArtAndersen. He was appointed Group Chief Findfiécer and
as a Director of The Governor and Company of thekB# Ireland in February 2012. He is also a Divedtf Bristol &
West plc.

David McGowan, LLB
David was appointed as a Director of Bank of Irdl&foldings UK plc in February 2005. He joined Basfkireland
Group in 1979 and has held various executive mostiwithin the Group including CEO Northern Irelar@EO

Business Banking UK and Chief Executive of Bankrefand (UK) plc. He is a Director and Chief RiskfiCer of
Bank of Ireland (UK) plc. He is also a DirectorRxriistol & West plc and NIIB Group Limited.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their Strategic Report ofklBahlreland UK Holdings plc (the ‘Company’) and isubsidiaries
(the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Purpose of the Strategic Report

The Strategic Report is a new statutory requirenugter the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic ReportRinectors’

Report) Regulations 2013 and is intended to beafiait balanced and to provide information that eemtile Directors
to be satisfied that they have complied with Secfi@2 of the Companies Act 2006 (which sets outiinectors’ duty
to promote the success of the Company).

Review of business

The primary functions of the Group are to raiseiteajunding for the Bank of Ireland Group throutite issuance of
subordinated liabilities, to engage in lendinghe tJK and to provide finance to certain other Bahkreland Group
companies. The loan book is declining as older dget repaid which are not being replaced with meisiness
lending. The main Group development that occurtathd 2013 was the sale of a commercial propertPhg Temple
Quay Limited, a subsidiary within the Group, to thitimate Parent at its net book value. This propemas leased to
the Ultimate Parent until the date of sale.

The Group made a profit before taxation of £3.3ntontinuing operations in the year ended 31 Decer20&3 (year
ended 31 December 2012: loss before taxation of3f1¢ Profit before tax from discontinued operasidor the year
ended 31 December 2013 was £nil (year ended 31nilmre2012: £2.1m). Discontinued operations at 3teDwer
2012 related to subsidiary entities NIIB Group Lied and Burdale Financial Holdings Limited. Thensfer of NIIB
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (‘NIIB Groupt Bank of Ireland (UK) plc was completed in Januaé12. The
sale of Burdale Financial Holdings Limited to WeHlsargo International Banking Corporation was coitgalein
February 2012.

The component parts of the Group’s result are k®is:

Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Continuing operations
Total operating incon 3.t 5.2
Operating expens (0.7) (3.9)
Operating profit before impairment charges 2.8 1.3
Impairment releases on loans and adve 0.t 0.4
Loss on disposal of business activi (16.0
Profit/(loss) before taxation from continuing op@as 3.3 (14.3
Discontinued operation:
Profit before taxation from discontinued operat 2.5
Loss on disposal of operatic (0.4)
Profit before taxation from discontinued operat 2.1
Profit/(loss) before taxatior 3.3 (12.2
Taxation
Taxation charge on continuing operati (2.0 (20.8
Taxation credit on discontinued operati 2.3
Taxation charge (2.0 (18.5
Profit/(loss) after taxation
- On continuing operatio 1.3 (35.1
- On discontinued operatic 4.4
Profit/(loss) after taxation 1.3 (30.7

Profit before tax of £3.3m from continuing operasdor the year ended 31 December 2013 represeritgigase in
profits of £17.6m compared to the year ended 3leBder 2012. This increase is due primarily to a s disposal of
business activities of £16.0m for the year ende®8&ember 2012 which arose on the transfer of NBIBup to Bank
of Ireland (UK) plc and the sale of Burdale FinahcHoldings Limited to Wells Fargo International rikéng
Corporation.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Review of business (continued)

Taxation charge on continuing operations for theryended 31 December 2013 has decreased by £18r@pared to
the year ended 31 December 2012. The prior yeatitax charge included the effect of an adverse tgogigment
issued in relation to a tax dispute involving Balst West plc, a subsidiary company.

Further details of the discontinued operationstfar year ended 31 December 2012 are disclosedten Ifoto the
financial statements.

Key performance measures

Key performance measures are outlined below.

Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
Income Statement £m £m
Operating profit before impairment charges andasspof assets 2.8 1.3
Impairment releases on loans and adve 0.t 0.4
Loss on disposal of business activi (16.0
Profit/(loss) before taxation from continuing opéras 3.3 (14.3)
Balance Shee
Loans and advances to ba 567.( 598.(
Loans and advances to customers (net of provisions) 6.6 14.0
Liabilities to bank 451.2 486.2
Subordinated liabilitie 26.7 26.1

Risk management

The Group’s risk management objectives and poliaiesthe principal risk exposures facing the bissireee set out as
follows:

Credit Risk
Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss resgjtirom a counterparty being unable to meet itsremttal obligations to
the Group in respect of loans or other financiahgsactions.

The Group is in the process of winding down itsdeal loan portfolio in an orderly manner to mingmiany potential
loss that the Group might incur from such a stratélthe credit risk management of the residual Ipartfolio is
outsourced to the Bank of Ireland Group and is mgaday it in line with its established Risk Govaroa Framework.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will exgpience difficulty in financing its assets and /moeeting its contractual
payment obligations as they fall due. Liquiditykriarises from differences in timing between castows and
outflows. Cash inflows are driven, by the matustyucture of loans and investments held by the @Grehile cash
outflows are driven, inter alia, by the term of thebt issued by the Group and the outflows fromodié@ccounts held
for customers.

The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is governey the Bank of Ireland Group’s Risk Appetite Stagetnand
associated limits and the Bank of Ireland Groupsding and Liquidity policy, both of which are apped by the
Bank of Ireland Court of Directors on the recomnuagiwh of the Bank of Ireland Group Risk Policy Coitiee
(‘GRPC’) and the Court Risk Committee (‘CRC’). Theeration of this policy is delegated to the Barikreland
Group Asset and Liability Committee (‘ALCO’). BarK Ireland Group Treasury, on behalf of ALCO, ispensible
for monitoring liquidity risk and for the developmteand monitoring of liquidity policy.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Risk management (continued)

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss in the Group’s ime® or net worth arising from adverse change inré@sterates,
exchange rates, or other market prices.

The Group recognises that the effective managewwfemarket risk is essential to the maintenancetaible earnings,
the preservation of shareholder value and the wehient of the Group’s corporate objectives. Theupi®exposure to
market risk is governed by policy approved by tHRR&. This policy sets out the nature of risk thatyrhe taken, the
types of financial instrument that may be used émage risk and the way in which risk is controlled.

The Group considers that the two most significapeats of market risk for the Group are interets risk and foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk arising from the Group’s fundawiivities is managed using fixed rate loans. Aszalt, the impact of
movement in interest rates is not significant.

Board Policy requires that all foreign currency esyre is hedged to de-minimis levels as it arises.

The Group’s policy is to avoid general intereserask and to match fund all currency positionsasoto ensure no
material currency exposure exists.

Operational Risk

The Group outsources its key operations to the Rdiikeland Group and, as a result, operation&l issmanaged by
the Bank of Ireland Group. The Bank of Ireland Gramanages regulatory and compliance risk under emat
framework, which is implemented by accountable aiiges, monitored by the GRPC, the Bank of Irel&@bup
Audit Committee, the CRC and the Group Regulat@gmpliance and Operational Risk Committee (‘GRCORand
supported by the GRCORC function. The effective agament of regulatory and compliance risk is prilpahe
responsibility of business management.

The operational dependence on the Bank of Irelar@mi@from a going concern perspective has beenidenesl on
pages 20 and 21.

In addition to the above, the Group is subjectnimome taxation where the ultimate taxation deteatiom may be
uncertain, in particular if taken to litigation,etroutcome of which can be unpredictable. The Grmgognises
provisions for taxation based on estimates of #xed that are likely to fall due, taking into acebstatutory, judicial
and regulatory guidance and, where appropriaterest advice. There is a risk that the final taomtbutcome could be
different from the amounts that are currently reeot.

Signed on behalf of the Board:
Desmond E Crowley

Director

10 April 2014
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
DIRECTORS’' REPORT

The Directors present their Report and audited @afeted financial statements of the Company aedGhoup for the
year ended 31 December 2013. A Statement of Dir€dResponsibilities is included on page 9.

Principal activities

The Company’s principal activity is to act as areimediate holding and finance company. In thisrédgthe Company
is an issuer of listed debt securities which asgetl on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Additionatg Group
provides banking, credit and leasing products.

Financial performance

The Group’s profit attributable to the owners o tRarent, for the year ended 31 December 2013 W&sn£(year
ended 31 December 2012: loss £30.7m). An analygisrformance is set out in the Strategic Repompages 4 to 6.

Dividends

There were no dividends proposed or paid duringytes ended 31 December 2013 by the Company (yehsrde31
December 2012: £nil).

Directors
The names of the persons who were Directors o€dmapany at any time during the year ende®8tember 2013 and

up to the date of the approval of the financiatesteents are set out below. Except where indicdtes; served as
directors for the entire period.

D Crowley Chairman

J Hickey Director Appointed 1 April 2014
A Keating Director

M King Director Resigned 31 March 2014
S Matchett Director Resigned 4 April 2014

D McGowan Director

Future developments
The Directors do not envisage any significant clesrtg the operating activities in the forthcomimghcial year.
Risk management

The Group’s risk management objectives and poliaresthe principal risk exposures facing the bissirare set out in
notes 24, 25 and 26.

Going concern

The Directors have considered the appropriatenedgeqyoing concern basis in preparing the findnstatements for
the year ended 31 December 2013 on pages 20 antiei form part of the notes to the financial stagats.

Directors’ indemnities

A qualifying third party indemnity provision (asfieed in section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) aag remains in
force for the benefit of all directors of the Compaand former directors who held office during thear. The
indemnity is granted under article 160 of the Comyp@Articles of Association.

Post balance sheet events

On 14 February 2014, a court judgment was issuetiafha in favour of Her Majesty’s Revenue and Qurss

(‘(HMRC) in respect of an appeal that Bristol & Wesc, a subsidiary company, had taken againstdmerae court
judgment issued in 2013 in relation to a tax dispatolving that company. Both parties have decittedppeal this
decision, having been granted permission to apteajudgment to the Court of Appeal. After takingoi account
available group relief, full provision continueste made in these consolidated financial statenfentthe expected
tax and interest arising to this Group pendingralfdecision as set out in note 32 to the finarstatements.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Provision of information to auditors

All Directors at the time of approving this repartnfirm the following:

. So far as each Director is aware, there is no inédion of which the Company’s and Group’s auditans
unaware, and

. Each Director has taken all the steps they oughaite taken as a Director, in order to make therasedware
of any relevant audit information, and to estabtisét the Company’s and Group’s auditors are awéthat
information.

Directors’ Statement Pursuant to the Disclosure andransparency Rules

Each of the Directors, who were Directors of thenpany at the date of signing these financial statgsas shown in

the Directors’ Report confirm that, to the bestath person’s knowledge and belief:

. The Financial Statements, prepared in accordantelmternational Financial Reporting Standards @BRas
adopted by the European Union, give a true andvfaw of the assets, liabilities, financial positiand profit
of the Company and the Group; and

. The Strategic Report contained in the Annual Repioctudes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position oCihvapany and the Group, together with a descripticthe
principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Signed on behalf of the Board:
Desmond E Crowley

Director

10 April 2014
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the uahrReport and the financial statements in acca@anith
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare tirrstatements for each financial year. Under ldnatthe directors
have prepared the group and parent company finastei@ments in accordance with International FerelrReporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Udimater company law the directors must not apprbeefinancial
statements unless they are satisfied that they gitie and fair view of the state of affairs oé t&roup and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Grouptfat period. In preparing these financial statesiethe directors are
required to:

 select suitable accounting policies and then agiyn consistently;

» make judgements and accounting estimates thatasemable and prudent;

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by tihepgan Union have been followed, subject to anyeralt
departures disclosed and explained in the finasté&ements;

» prepare the financial statements on the going gonbasis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
Company and the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeqgaet®unting records that are sufficient to show arglain the
Company’s and Group’s transactions and disclosk réasonable accuracy at any time the financiaitipnsof the

Company and the Group and enable them to ensur¢éhthfinancial statements comply with the Compafiet 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding thetesdehe Company and the Group and hence for gatéasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud@hdr irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenandergegrity of the financial information relating the Company and
the Group on the Bank of Ireland Group’s websitegiklation in the United Kingdom governing the megtion and
dissemination of financial statements may diffeinfrlegislation in other jurisdictions.

Signed on behalf of the Board:
Desmond E Crowley

Director

10 April 2014
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion:

» the financial statements, defined below, give & &uad fair view of the state of the Group’s andhaf parent
Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and oGtloeip’s profit and the Group’s and the parent Canys
cash flows for the year then ended;

» the Group financial statements have been propeeyared in accordance with International FinanRighorting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

» the parent Company financial statements have bemgregy prepared in accordance with InternationabRcial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Earopnion and as applied in accordance with theigioms
of the Companies Act 2006; and

» the financial statements have been prepared inréacoe with the requirements of the Companies A&62
and, as regards the Group financial statementglé# of the IAS Regulation.

This opinion is to be read in the context of whatsay in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited
The Group financial statements and parent Compamndial statements (the ‘financial statements’hioh are
prepared by Bank of Ireland UK Holdings Plc, corsgri

» the consolidated statement of comprehensive indomtbe year ended 31 December 2013;

+ the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 Decemb8r 20

» the consolidated statement of changes in equitthfoyear then ended;

» the Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2013;

» the Company statement of changes in equity foyé#ae then ended;

» the Group and Company cash flow statements foyehe then ended; and

» the notes to the financial statements, which ineladsummary of significant accounting policies axtider
explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has beenliedpn their preparation is applicable law and §5Ras adopted by
the European Union and, as regards the parent Gomfaancial statements, as applied in accordanite the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In applying the financial reporting framework, ttlieectors have made a number of subjective judgésnéor example
in respect of significant accounting estimatesmiaking such estimates, they have made assumptimhsansidered
future events.

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with Inteomati Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAdK &
Ireland)’). An audit involves obtaining evidenceoabthe amounts and disclosures in the financééstents sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financirmatnts are free from material misstatement, whethesed by fraud
or error. This includes an assessment of:

» whether the accounting policies are appropriatéhéoGroup’s and the parent Company’s circumstaaces
have been consistently applied and adequatelyodisdl

» the reasonableness of significant accounting etgmaade by the directors; and

» the overall presentation of the financial staterment

In addition, we read all the financial and non-fioml information in the Annual Report to identifpaterial
inconsistencies with the audited financial statetsieand to identify any information that is appakgemnhaterially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent wille knowledge acquired by us in the course dbpming the audit.
If we become aware of any apparent material misstabhts or inconsistencies we consider the imptoatifor our
report.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companieg\ct 2006

In our opinion the information given in the StrateBeport and the Directors’ Report for the finahgiear for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistithntthe financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report byexception

Adequacy of accounting records and information andxplanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required torteép you if, in our opinion:

» we have not received all the information and exatiems we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been keptebgarent Company, or returns adequate for out hase
not been received from branches not visited byus;

» the parent Company financial statements are nagiaement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from tagponsibility.

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required tortep you if, in our opinion, certain disclosuresdirectors’
remuneration specified by law are not made. We navexceptions to report arising from this resploitisy.

Responsibilities for the financial statements andhte audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Direst®Responsibilities set out on page 9, the direcéme responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements fandeing satisfied that they give a true and ¥amw.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an apiron the financial statements in accordance wigllieable law and
ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require usamply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethi&tkandards for
Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been preghdor and only for the Company’s members as & limdccordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2886 for no other purpose. We do not, in givingsthepinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other pgepar to any other person to whom this report éswshor into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreedriyyrion consent in writing.

Hamish Anderson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

10 April 2014
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2013

Interest incom

Interest expent

Net interest income

Fee and commission inco

Fee and commission expe

Other operating income/(expen

Total operating income

Operating expens

Operating profit before impairment charges and
disposal of asse

Impairment releases on loans and adve

Loss on disposal of business activi

Profit/(loss) before taxatior

Taxation charg

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operati

Profit/(loss) for the year and total comprehensivéncome

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Parent

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operato
Profit for the year from discontinued operati

Note

o ;o

10

11

11

Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
5kt 9.7
(4.0) (8.8)
1.5 0.6
2.5 7.4
(3.9 (0.6)
3.4 (2.5)
3.t 5.2
(0.7) (3.9)
2.8 1.3
0.t 04
(16.0°

3.3 (14.3
(2.0) (20.8
1.3 (35.1
4.4

1.3 (30.7)
1.3 (35.1
4.4

1.3 (30.7°

The notes on pages 19 to 65 form an integral gaheoconsolidated financial statements.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

31 December 201

31 December 201

Note £m £m
Asset:
Loans and advances to ba 13 567.C 598.(
Loans and advances to custor 14 6.€ 14.C
Deferred taxatio 20 1.t
Property, plant and equipme 16 26.5
Total asset 575.] 638.F
Liabilities
Liabilities to bank 18 451.2 486.2
Other liabilities 19 14.¢ 15.¢
Current taxation liabilitie 5.1 33.t
Deferred taxatio 20 1.C
Subordinated liabilitie 21 26.7 26.1
Other borrowed func 22 32.€ 32.€
Total liabilities 530.t 595.2
Equity
Share capiti 23 2.5 2.5
Retained earnin 42.1 40.€
Total shareholders’ equity 44.€ 43,2
Total equity 44.6 43.3
Total equity and liabilities 575.1 638.5

The notes on pages 19 to 65 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.

The financial statements and accompanying notegages 19 to 65 were approved by the Board of Qireatn 10

April 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Desmond E Crowley
Director
10 April 2014
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Group —Year ended 31 December 2013

Total
Retained shareholders’
Share capital earnings equity  Total equity
Note £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 201: 2.5 40.8 43.3 43.3
Comprehensive incom
Profit for the year - 1.3 1.3 1.3
Total comprehensive incom - 1.3 1.3 1.3
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid - - - -
Total transactions with owners - - - -
As at 31 December 201 2.5 42.1 44.¢ 44.¢
Group —Year ended 31 December 2012
Total
Retained shareholders’
Share capital earnings equity Total equity
Note £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 201z 2.5 71.5 74.0 74.0
Comprehensive incom
Loss for the year - (30.7) (30.7) (30.7)
Total comprehensive incom - (30.7 (30.7 (30.7
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid - - - -
Total transactions with owners - - - -
As at 31 December 201 2.5 40.¢ 43.F 43.F

The notes on pages 19 to 65 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Asset:

Loans and advances to banks
Other assets

Current taxation assets

Investment in Group undertakings
Total asset:

Liabilities

Liabilities to banks

Other liabilities

Current taxation liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital

Retained earnings
Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

Note

13
17

15

18
19

21

23

31 December 201

31 December 201

£m £m
396.2 428.6
71.5 71.5
0.1
1.6 1.7
469.4 501.¢
415.6 431.7
1.8 1.9
16.8
26.7 26.1
4441 476.F
25 2.5
22.8 22.8
25.Z 25.Z
469.4 501.¢

The notes on pages 19 to 65 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.

Desmond E Crowley
Director
10 April 2014

Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc - Company No: NI 0066941
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2013

At 1 January 201:
Comprehensive incom

Profit for the yea

Total comprehensive incom
Transactions with owners
Dividends pai

Total transactions with owners

As at 31 December 2013

Year ended 31 December 2012

At 1 January 2012

Comprehensive incom
Profit for the yea
Total comprehensive incom

Transactions with owners
Dividends pai
Total transactions with owners

As at 31 December 2012

Retained
Share capital earnings Total equity
Note £m £m £m
2.5 22.¢ 25.%
12
2.5 22.8 25.3
Retained
Share capital earnings Total equity
Note £m £m £m
2.5 5.7 8.2
12 - 17.1 17.1
- 17.1 17.1
2.5 22.8 25.3

The notes on pages 19 to 65 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Note Group Company
Year endec  Year endec Year endec  Year endec
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activitie!
Profit/(loss) before taxation
- continuing operations 3.3 (14.3) - 32.0
- discontinued operations 11 - 12 - -
3.3 (12.2) - 32.0
Depreciation and amortisation 16 0.2 0.2 -
Net change in subsidiary undertakings 15 - - 0.1 2.6
Impairment releases on loans and advanc
customers 14 (0.5) (0.2) -
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 16 - 2.6 -
Interest expense on subordinated liabilities 4 0.9 1 1. 0.9 3.7
Interest expense on other borrowed funds 2.5 2.7 -
Net change in accruals and deferred income - 0.5 - 0.1
Other non-cash movements - )(2.2 -
Cash flows from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 6.4 (7.5) 1.0 38.4
Net change in loans and advances to banks 13 (62.2) 49.11 (67.8) (15.6)
Net change in loans and advances to customers 14 8.1 84 4 - -
Net change in held for sale assets and liabilities - 51.8 - .86
Net change in other assets 17 - - - 47.2
Net change in liabilities to banks 18 (35.0) (92.8) .06 (2.7)
Net change in other liabilities 19 (0.9) 3.9 (0.2) (20.5
Net change in subordinated liabilities 21 0.6 (0.6) 0.6 (38.3)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating asset:
and liabilities (89.4) (138.4) (83.4) 6.7
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities before taxation (83.0) (145.9) (82.4) 451
Taxation paid- continuing operations (32.9) (27.2) .96 -
Taxation credit- discontinued operations - 2.3 - -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities (115.9) (170.8) (99.3) 45.1
Investing activities (section a) 26.3 - - 2.6
Financing activities (section b) (3.6) (4.1) (0.9) @6.
Net change in cash and cash equivalel (93.2 (A74.9 (100.2 0.8
Opening cash and cash equivalents 141.5 316.4 105.5 .7104
Closing cash and cash equivaler 30 48.: 141t 5.3 105.t

The notes on pages 19 to 65 form an integral gaheofinancial statements.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

Note Group Company
Year endec Year endec Year endec  Year endec
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
(a) Investing activities
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 26.2 -
Net proceeds from disposal of business activities - - 2.€
Cash inflow from investing activities 26.2 - 2.€
(b) Financing activities
Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (0.9) (1.4) (0.9) (4.0)
Redemption of subordinated liabilities 21 - - (42.9
Interest paid on preference shares (2.7 (2.7 -
Cash outflow from financing activities (3.6) (4.1) (0.9) (46.9)
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by B&nk of Ireland UK Holdings plc (the ‘Company’) arnts
subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) are as follows and hbeen consistently applied to all periods presentddss otherwise
stated.

1.1  Basis of preparation
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in théedhKingdom.

The financial statements comprise the Consolid&tdement of Comprehensive Income, the ConsolidBtddnce
Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Changes iityi-dbe Company Balance Sheet, the Company Statenfe
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Compant Ebswv Statements and the notes to the financaéstents.

The financial statements of the Company and thesaaated financial statements of the Group argamed in
accordance with International Financial Reportintgn8ards (IFRSs) and IFRS Interpretations CommittERIC)
interpretations as adopted by the European Unidf) @hd with those parts of the Companies Act 20@@ieable to
companies reporting under IFRS. The consolidatedirdividual financial statements are prepared utige historical
cost convention as modified to include the fairedion of certain financial instruments and land huaildings.

The financial statements are presented in Poured§irigf (£) which is the functional and presentagiocurrency of the
Company, except where otherwise indicated.

The preparation of the financial statements in conity with IFRS requires the use of estimates assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liadslitit the date of the financial statements andeperted amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting peAttiough these estimates are based on managemeests
knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actesilits ultimately may differ from those estimatésdescription of

the critical estimates and judgements is set onbie 2.

1.2 Going concern

The time period that the Directors have considéredvaluating the appropriateness of the going eomdasis in
preparing the financial statements for the yeardrgil December 2013 is a minimum of 12 months fiieendate of
approval of these financial statements (the ‘peabdssessment’).

The Group is a direct subsidiary of Bol Europeandihgs SARL incorporated as a “société a respolitgidimitée”
under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourgira@rmediate holding company in The Governor andfany
of the Bank of Ireland and its subsidiaries (thenk of Ireland Group’). Bol European Holdings SARLa direct
subsidiary of The Governor and Company of the Bafrikeland.

The primary functions of the Group are to raiseiteajunding for the Bank of Ireland Group throutite issuance of
subordinated liabilities to engage in lending ie thK and to provide finance to certain other Bahkreland Group
companies.

In making their assessment of the Group’s abildycbntinue as a going concern, the Directors haxsduated
projections of the profitability, capital, liquigitand funding position of the Group for the perafdassessment as well
as the going concern assessment made by the Bargtasfd Group.

Profitability

The Group has a number of wholly-owned subsidiangentakings. Financial projections for trading tesi have been
prepared which show that these companies will coetito generate sufficient income to at least ctlveir costs for
the period of assessment.

Capital

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total equitye®4.6 million, comprising share capital of £2.5 limil and
consolidated retained earnings of £42.1 millione Trectors do not currently anticipate that the@r has any further
capital requirements during the period of assestntdowever should any requirement arise The Govearal
Company of the Bank of Ireland has confirmed thatiil continue to support the Group for a periodat least 12
months from the date of approval of the financiatements by the Directors.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.2  Going concern (continued)

Liquidity and Funding
At 31 December 2013, the Group had deposits withkBaf Ireland Group of £567.0 million and borrowan§om
Bank of Ireland Group of £451.2 million.

The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland daadirmed that it will continue to fund and supptire Group
for a period of at least 12 months from the datepgfroval of the financial statements by the Doext

On the basis of the above the Directors of the @imlieve that the funding and liquidity requirensewill continue to
be met for the period of assessment.

Going concern assessment of the Bank of Ireland Group
The Group is reliant on the Bank of Ireland Groopliquidity, funding and for the provision of oional services.

The Bank of Ireland Group will continue to requarecess to the Monetary Authorities for funding dgrihe period of
assessment. The Bank of Ireland Group is satisiedever that, based on announcements from the Earo@entral
Bank (‘ECB’), the European Commission (‘EC’), Imational Monetary Fund (‘IMF’) and the clarity obmfirmations
received from the Irish State authorities thatalinreasonable circumstances, the required liguiditd funding from
the ECB and Central Bank of Ireland will be avaléato the Bank of Ireland Group during the periédssessment.

On the basis of the above, the Court of Directdr§he Governor and Company of the Bank of Irelaad boncluded
that there are no material uncertainties relatedvents or conditions that may cast significantldan the Bank of
Ireland Group’s ability to continue as a going cenmcand that it is appropriate to prepare the fir@rstatements on a
going concern basis.

The audit report on the financial statements ofBhek of Ireland Group for the year ended 31 Deam2i013 (signed
on 28 February 2014) is not qualified and doescoatain an emphasis of matter paragraph in reggeyding concern.
Taking into account the above, the Directors of@neup are satisfied that any risk attaching todetinued ability of
the Bank of Ireland Group to support the Groupiss§actorily addressed.

On the basis of the above, the Directors considappropriate to prepare the financial statementa going concern
basis having concluded that there are no mateniedniainties relating to events or conditions thay cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a gaingcern over the period of assessment.

1.3  Adoption of new and amended accounting standds

The following new standards and amendments to attmustandards have been adopted by the Groupglthe year
ended 31 December 2013:

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised 2011) (IAS 19R)

IAS 19R eliminated the option for deferred recogmitof all changes in the present value of the rdefi benefit
obligation and in the fair value of plan assetl(iding the corridor approach, which was not agblig the Group).
On the adoption of the new standard, capitalisadréuadministration expenses relating to deferrad eetired

members were removed from the measurement of defieaefit plan obligations as such expenses arerecegnised
as incurred. In addition, the amended standardinexia net interest approach (based off high quatitporate bonds),
which replaces the expected return on plan assts,no change to the interest on pension obligati@nd requires
enhanced disclosures for defined benefit plans. ddaption of this amendment has had no impact erfittancial

position of the Group.

IAS 19R also changes the recognition criteria fammination benefits. Certain termination benefitdl wow be
recognised at a later date unless they form pag odstructuring as defined in IAS 37. This hadimpact on the
Group'’s financial position.

Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statenents’

This amendment requires the grouping of items ptesein other comprehensive income (‘OCI’). Iterhattcould be
reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss atudufe point in time (e.g., net movement on castv thedges and net loss
or gain on available for sale financial assets)ehtovbe presented separately from items that willbe reclassified
(e.g. actuarial gains and losses on defined bepkdits). The adoption of this amendment has hadinpact on the
Group.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.3  Adoption of new and amended accounting standds (continued)

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Offsetting Financial Assets ad Financial Liabilities’

This amendment requires an entity to disclose médion about the rights to offset financial instents and related
arrangements. The new disclosures are required toothall recognised financial instruments that aet off in
accordance with IAS 32 and for recognised finangigtruments that are subject to an enforceableanartting
arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective ldther the financial instruments are set off inoadance with 1AS
32. The adoption of this amendment has had no itrgrathe financial position of the Group.

IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’

The standard establishes a single source of guedander IFRS for all fair value measurements. ksdoot change
when an entity is required to use fair value, latiher provides guidance on how to measure fairevahder IFRS when
fair value is required or permitted. The applicataf IFRS 13 has not materially impacted the failue measurements
in the Group’s financial statements. The standdsd eequires some additional disclosure on faiugal The Group
provides these disclosures in note 26.

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 (the Annual Improvemas)
The annual improvements process provides a vefucimaking non-urgent but necessary amendment8R&$. These
amendments have had no impact on the financiatiposif the Group.

Several other new standards and amendments applthdofirst time in 2013. However, they do not irapghe
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

1.4  Group financial statements

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries, which are those companies and othiities in which the Group, directly or indirectlipas power to
govern the financial and operating policies, gelher@ccompanying a shareholding of more than hélit® voting
rights, are consolidated.

Assets, liabilities and results of all Group undkings have been included in the Group financialeshents on the
basis of financial statements made up to the erldeofinancial period.

The existence and effect of potential voting rigihist are presently exercisable or presently cdilerare considered
when assessing whether the Group controls anottity.e

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date ontwbintrol is transferred to the Group and are mgédo consolidated
from the date that control ceases. The Group usesatquisition method of accounting to account Hasiness
combinations. The consideration transferred foratguisition of a subsidiary is the fair value lo¢ assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interestsuied by the Group. The consideration transferrelddes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingeonsideration arrangement. Acquisition-relateste are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and lidbgitand contingent liabilities assumed in a busireesmbination are
measured initially at their fair values at the dsijlon date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition sasihe Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the &egu either at fair value or at the non-controllingerest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net asséis.ekcess of the consideration transferred, theuatmof any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the adtjaisdate fair value of any previous equity intgtran the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the ideabfe net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unreafiséits on transactions between group companies linena&ted.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless émsdction provides evidence of impairment of trsetagansferred. In
addition, foreign exchange gains and losses whiide an the retranslation to functional currencyirgércompany
monetary assets and liabilities are not eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been ckdngvhere necessary, to ensure consistency withpalieies
adopted by the Group.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.5 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of eawtity of the Group are measured using the currefidpe primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (functional currency’). The consolidated finaicstatements
are presented in Pounds Sterling (£), which ifihetional and presentation currency of the Pa@amhpany.

Foreign currency transactions are translated imtonEs Sterling at the exchange rates prevailinthatdates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and lossedtingsfrom the settlement of such transactions #&wan the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetasets and liabilities denominated in foreign cwies are
recognised in the income statement.

1.6 Interestincome and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised inntt@rie statement for all instruments measured attes®d cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of caltiud the amortised cost of a financial asset famamcial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest exg@eaver the relevant period. The effective interat is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash paymentea®ipts through the expected life of the finahiiatrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net gagrgmount of the financial asset or financial i When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Gregfimates cash flows considering all contractuahs$eof the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) bugsdoot consider future credit losses. The calamraiticludes all
fees and points paid or received between partigbegia@ontract that are an integral part of theotiffe interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or distsoun

Once a financial asset or a group of similar finanassets has been written down as a result afgairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate odr@st used to discount the future cash flows fer phrpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Where the Group revises its estimates of paymeantsoeipts on a financial instrument measured airised cost, the
carrying amount of the financial instrument (or @poof financial instruments) is adjusted to reflactual and revised
estimated cash flows. The Group recalculates theying amount by computing the present value oihegtied future
cash flows at the financial instrument’s origineketive interest rate. The adjustment is recoghisethe profit or loss
as income or expense.

1.7 Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions, which are not an integral gfathe effective interest rate of a financial tmsnent, are
generally recognised as the related services anddmd. Loan commitment fees for loans that areljiko be drawn
down, are deferred (together with related direct®oand recognised as an adjustment to the eféectierest rate on
the loan once drawn.

1.8  Operating profit/(loss)

Operating profit/(loss) includes the Group’s eagsifrom ongoing activities after impairment charged after loss on
disposal of business activities.

1.9  Other operating income/(expense)
Other operating income includes the gains and sosadinancial instruments held for trading. Itlides the gains and

losses on the purchase and sale of these instrapthetinterest receivable, payable, and the faliner movement of
these instruments. It also includes net gainsgk)sarising from foreign exchange.

Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc - Company No: NI 066941 23-



BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.10 Financial assets

(1) Classification, Recognition and Measurement
The Group classifies its financial assets as lcamd receivables. The Group determines the claassdit of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments thahatejuoted in an
active market. They arise when the Group providesay, goods or services directly to a debtor withintention of
trading the receivabld.oans are recorded at fair value plus transactastscwhen cash is advanced to the borrowers.
They are subsequently accounted for at amortisstusing the effective interest method.

(2)  Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the righteceive cash flows from the financial assets hemred or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risié ewards of ownership.

1.11 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised aiif value, (normally the issue proceeds, i.e. ¥aiue of consideration
received) less, in the case of financial liabiiteubsequently carried at amortised cost, tramsactsts. For liabilities
carried at amortised cost, any difference betwéenproceeds, net of transaction costs, and thengtiten value is
recognised in the income statement using the éféeaiterest method.

Preference shares which carry a mandatory coupenclasssified as financial liabilities. The dividendn these
preference shares are recognised in the incomensat as interest expense using the effectiveasttenethod.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they extinguished, that is when the obligation is laisged, cancelled or
expires.

1.12 Valuation of financial instruments

The Group recognises certain financial instrumextt&ir value in the Balance Sheet. Fair valuehis amount for
which an asset could be exchanged or a liabilitlesk between knowledgeable willing parties in am’a length
transaction.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilitieeded in active markets are based on unadjustedria offer prices
respectively. If an active market does not exisg Group establishes fair value using valuatiomrgpies. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactidiscounted cash flow analysis, option pricing eledand other
valuation techniques commonly used by market pp#its. To the extent where possible, these vatidaechniques
use observable market data. Where observable dsa dot exist, the Group uses estimates based eorbekt
information available.

The best evidence of the fair value of a finanmatrument at initial recognition is the transanotiorice, in an arm’s
length transaction, unless the fair value of timstrument is evidenced by comparison with othereolzble current
market transactions in the same instrument (i.thaut modification or repackaging) or based on laatéon technique
which uses only observable market inputs. When swadtence exists, the initial valuation of the ingtent may result
in the Group recognising a profit on initial recégm. In the absence of such evidence, the instntnis initially
valued at the transaction price. Any day one pisfideferred and recognised in the income statetoetie extent that
it arises from a change in a factor that marketigipants would consider in setting a price. Sthaigne amortisation is
used where it approximates to that amount. Subsgaianges in fair value are recognised immediatetie income
statement without the reversal of deferred daypéts or losses.

Where a transaction price in an arm’s length tretisa is not available, the fair value of the instrent at initial
recognition is measured using a valuation technique

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets katdilities are disclosed within note 26 togetiéth a description of
the valuation technique used for each asset dfifjabategory.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.13 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet dateemwtiette is objective evidence that a financiaktass group of

financial assets is impaired. A financial assetaogroup of financial assets is impaired and impaimrmiosses are
incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidenof impairment as a result of one or more evertsoccurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss eVeand that loss event (or ‘events’) has an imgacthe estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of fitiahassets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or grotiassets is impaired includes observable datadbtes to the
attention of the Group about the following lossrge

0] delinquency in contractual payments of printipainterest;
(i)  cash flow difficulties;

(i)  breach of loan covenants or conditions;

(iv)  deterioration of the borrower’s competitivesition;

(v)  deterioration in the value of collateral,

(vi) external rating downgrade below an acceptéhlel; and
(vii) initiation of bankruptcy proceedings.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidefidenpairment exists individually for financial sets that are
individually significant, and individually or coliéively for financial assets that are not indivitluaignificant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impent exists for an individually assessed finahaiset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a groof financial assets with similar credit risk cheteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assetd &re individually assessed for impairment andwbich an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognisechat included in a collective assessment of inmpeut.

If there is objective evidence that an impairmession loans and advances has been incurred, thenaof the loss is
measured as the difference between the assetl@ngammount and the present value of estimateddutash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not beearred) discounted at the financial asset’s adgieffective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is redusezligh the use of an allowance account and the ahwoduhe loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan hawiable interest rate, the discount rate for mgag any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate detredliunder the contract. As a practical expediget@roup may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s faiuealising an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the es@hdtiture cash flows of a collateralised finaneisdet reflects the cash
flows that may result from foreclosure less costsdbtaining and selling the collateral, whethemot foreclosure is
probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impant, financial assets are grouped on the bdsslar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Groupadipg process that considers asset type, indugeggraphical
location, collateral type, past due status andratblevant factors). Those characteristics arevagieto the estimation
of future cash flows for groups of such assets bing indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay aimounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assdtgyl®valuated. Future cash flows in a group ofrfoial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimabedthe basis of the contractual cash flows ofaeets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with itmésk characteristics similar to those in the @wo Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of currentroébke data to reflect the effects of current ctinds that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss elgrece is based and to remove the effects of comdiin the historical
period that do not exist currently. The methodolagg assumptions used for estimating future castsfare reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differencesvben loss estimates and actual loss experience.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the immpant loss decreases and the decrease can bel relgeetively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognigaeth as an improvement in the debtor's credingyt the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversgddijusting the allowance account. The amount efrdversal is
recognised in the income statement.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off agst the related provision for loan impairment. Blgans are written
off after all the necessary procedures have bempleted and the amount of the loss has been detedmSubsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off deseedhe amount of the charge for loan impairmenth& income

statement.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
1.14 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land and buildings are initially recogdis® cost, and subsequently are revalued annugibpen market
value by independent external valuers. Revaluatimago be made with sufficient regularity to eestirat the carrying
amount does not differ materially from the open ketwalue at the balance sheet date.

All other property, plant and equipment, includiingehold and leasehold adaptations, are statedstatribal cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost incluégpenditure that is directly attributable to thegaisition of the
items. Subsequent costs are included in the agsat'ging amount or are recognised as a separse¢t, @ appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic bésefssociated with the item will flow to the Groapd the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repaind maintenance are charged to the income statetngng the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on thaltetion of land and buildings are recognised reotomprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increasdaheBame asset are recognised in other comprekensome: all
other decreases are charged to the income statement

The Directors consider that residual values offfod@ and long leasehold property based on pricéiseabalance sheet
date are such that depreciation is not material.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight linehnodtto write down the carrying value of other iteofigroperty, plant
and equipment to their residual values over thetimated useful lives as follows:

» Adaptation works on freehold and leasehold propertfjfteen years, or the remaining period of libase

The assets’ residual values and useful lives aveewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balasieet date.
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impent whenever events or changes in circumstaincksate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Antassarrying amount is written down immediatelyit® estimated
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amosirgreater than its estimated recoverable amourd.r&éboverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value éests to sell or value in use.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, planteguipment are determined by reference to theyitey amount and
are taken into account in determining profit befaeation. If the asset being disposed of had presly been revalued
any amount in the revaluation reserve relatindéd asset is transferred to retained earningsspodal.

1.15 Leases

(1) When a Group company is the lessee:

The total payments and receipts made under opgriases are charged to the income statement tnaighs-line
basis over the period of the lease. When an operd¢iase is terminated before the lease periodekpsed, any
payment required to be made to the lessor by wapeoflty is recognised as an expense in the pémioghich
termination takes place.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where ttoeigishas substantially all the risks and rewardsvafiership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases pitalesed at the lease’s inception at the lowethef fair value of the
leased property, plant and equipment, and the presdue of the minimum lease payments. The cooeding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are includedong term payables. The interest element of thante costs is
charged to the income statement over the leaseden as to produce a constant periodic rate efést on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

(2)  When a Group company is the lessor:

When assets are held under a finance lease, teerpirealue of the lease payments is recognisedrase@vable. The
difference between the gross receivable and theeptevalue of the receivable is recognised as nedafinance
income. Lease income is included within net interesome and is recognised over the term of thedeaflecting a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investnn the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has @&mrésgal or constructive obligation as a resulpa$t events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodyingnenoc benefits will be required to settle the oatign, and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligatian be made.

Provision is made for the anticipated costs ofruestiring, including related redundancy costs, whenobligation
exists. An obligation exists when the Group hagtited formal plan for restructuring a businesd has raised valid
expectations in those affected by the restructusingtarting to implement the plan or announcisgmgin features.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whoexistence will be confirmed only by uncertaitufa events or
present obligations where the transfer of econdpeigefit is uncertain or cannot be reliably measuf@ohtingent
liabilities are not recognised but are discloseléssthe probability of their occurrence is remote.

1.17 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations
The Group is a minority participating employer hetBank of Ireland Staff Pensions Fund. The schisnaedefined
benefit scheme based on final pensionable pay perhted for eligible employees of Bank of Ireland.

Whilst the scheme is a defined benefit schemeetiemo policy or stated agreement for chargingriée defined
benefit cost. Therefore the Group recognises a egsal to its contributions payable for the periodthe income
statement.

(b) Equity compensation benefits

The Bank of Ireland Group has a number of equitilezbshare based payment schemes. The fair valinee alate of
grant of the employee services received in exchdmgthe grant of options or shares is recognisedraexpense and
recharged from the Bank of Ireland Group to theuprdlhe total amount to be expensed over the \gegt@miod is
determined on the date the options or shares amegt by reference to their fair value, excluding impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, grovithEarnings Per Share). Non-market vesting conaiti@are
included in assumptions about the number of opt@rshares that are expected to vest. At each tralsimeet date, the
Bank of Ireland Group revises its estimate of thember of options or shares that are expected to Nescognises the
impact of the revision of the original estimatdsamy, in the income statement, and a corresponddjgstment to
equity over the remaining vesting period.

Where an option is cancelled, the Group immediatetpgnises, as an expense, the amount of the sxpleat would
have otherwise been recognised over the remairidee westing period.

Where new shares are issued, the proceeds rece@tenf any directly attributable transaction caate credited to
share capital (at nominal value) and to share premivhen the options are exercised.

The fair value of the options granted is determinsihg option pricing models, which take into aaupthe exercise
price of the option, the current share price, ihk free interest rate, the expected volatilitytle share price over the
life of the option and other relevant factors.

(¢)  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits, such as salarieotmat benefits, are accounted for on an accruas loaer the period
in which the employees’ service is rendered. Bosiusm® recognised where the Group has a legal astraative
obligation to employees that can be reliably meadur

1.18 Taxation

(@  Current taxation

Taxation payable on profits, based on the applectdtation law in each jurisdiction, is recognisesdan expense in the
period in which profits arise. The taxation effeofstaxation losses available for carry forward ezeognised as an
asset when it is probable that future taxable fafill be available against which these lossealtilised.

Tax provisions are provided on a transaction bysaation basis using a best estimate approach.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.18 Taxation (continued)

(b) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using thability method, on temporary differences arisingwsen the taxation
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgimpunts in the financial statements. Deferred tamat determined
using taxation rates (and taxation laws) that Haaen enacted or substantively enacted by the balsimeet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferretitaxasset is realised or the deferred taxatadrility is settled.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are offgeén there is a legally enforceable right to dffserrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the defértaxation assets and liabilities relate to taxetilevied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entitydifferent taxable entities where there is an intanto settle the

balances on a net basis.

The rates enacted or substantively enacted atdlamde sheet date are used to determine defertatiota However,
the deferred taxation is not accounted for if is@s from initial recognition of an asset or lidtgiin a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time ofrdresaction affects neither accounting nor taxabddit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extantittis probable that future taxable profit wik lavailable against
which the temporary differences can be utilised bydeference to the expiry dates (if any) of tekevant unused tax
losses or tax credits. Deferred tax assets antitiedare not discounted.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary diffexes arising from investments in subsidiaries, exadpere the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differenigeontrolled by the Group and it is probable i difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax on items taken to other comprehenisivzeme is also recognised in other comprehensigenie. Such
items are subsequently reclassified to the incaaterment together with the deferred gain or loss.

1.19 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and rieé amount reported in the balance sheet where tisea legally
enforceable right of set off and there is an intento settle on a net basis, or realise the amsgtsettle the liability
simultaneously.

1.20 Dividend income

Dividends from Group undertakings are recognise@rnwthe Company’s right to receive the payment fabdished
either through the declaration of a final divideardeceipt of cash for interim dividends.

1.21 Issued debt and equity securities

The classification of instruments as a financiability or an equity instrument is dependent upoa substance of the
contractual arrangement. Instruments which carcpratractual obligation to deliver cash or anothearicial asset to
another entity are classified as financial lialgit The coupons on these instruments are recagiiséhe income

statement as interest expense. Where the Groumbsdute discretion in relation to the payment ofippns and

repayment of principal, the instrument is classlifés equity and any coupon payments are classifiadistributions in

the year in which they are made.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is remofredn the balance sheet and the difference betweercarrying
amount of the liability and the consideration pigithcluded as a gain or loss in the income statéme
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.22 Operating segments

The segmental analysis of the Group’s results arah€ial position is set out in note 3. The Groag fdentified two
reportable operating segments: Lending and Divai@entre. These segments have been identifiethe@madsis that
the chief operating decision-maker uses informatiased on these segments to make decisions absessawy
performance and allocating resources. The anatyfsissults by operating segment is based on marageatcounts
information. Transactions between the operatingrngegs are on normal commercial terms and conditibmernal

charges and transfer pricing adjustments have beftgcted in the performance of each segment. Revesharing
agreements are used to allocate external cust@wenues to operating segments on a reasonable basis

1.23 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cadltash equivalents comprise loans and advandsentes which can
be withdrawn on demand and loans and advancesia vath an original maturity of less than threentfs.

1.24 Assets and liabilities classified as held feale
An asset or a disposal group is classified as teeldale if the following conditions are met:

. its carrying amount will be recovered princigathirough sale rather than continuing use;
. it is available for immediate sale; and
. the sale is highly probable within the next tveemonths.

When an asset (or disposal group) is initially sifeesd as held for sale, it is measured at the fowfeits carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell at the ddtelassification, except for deferred tax assétemncial assets,
investment properties, insurance contracts andsaassing from employee benefits, which are messsim accordance
with the accounting policies applied to those aspabr to their classification as held for sale.

Impairment losses on initial classification of asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, and ubsesjuent

remeasurement of the asset (or disposal groupjeaognised in the income statement. Increasesrivdlue less costs
to sell of an asset (or disposal group) that haenlzlassified as held for sale are recogniselgeimncome statement to
the extent that the increase is not in excess pfcamulative impairment loss previously recognigedespect of the

asset (or disposal group).

Impairment losses are allocated to non-currentteisgithin the scope of IFRS 5 and the amount reiseghin the

financial statements is limited to the carryinguelof those assets. Other assets and liabilitiesnagasured in
accordance with applicable IFRS in both initial subsequent measurement of the asset (disposad)dreld for sale.

As a result, in accordance with IFRS 5 any impairhhesses in excess of the carrying value of thecwrrent assets in
the scope of IFRS 5 are not recognised until dspos

When an asset (or disposal group) is classifietiedd for sale, amounts presented in the balancet $bethe prior
period are not reclassified.

Where the criteria for the classification of anedg®r disposal group) as held for sale cease tmék the asset (or
disposal group) is reclassified out of held foesahd included in the appropriate balance sheelifgs

A discontinued operation is a cash-generating ainé group of cash-generating units that eithertdesn disposed of,
or is classified as held for sale, and (a) reprssarseparate major line of business or geograpdiiea of operations,
(b) is part of a single co-ordinated plan to digpofa separate major line of business or geogtaphrea of operations
or (c) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively withiew to resale.

The results of discontinued operations are showasisgle amount on the face of the income stateswmnprising the

post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operatians! the post-tax gain or loss recognised eitheaneasurement to fair
value less costs to sell or on the disposal ofltkeontinued operation.

1.25 Investment in Group undertakings

The Company’s investment in Group undertakingsated at cost less impairment.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.

1

.26

Impact of new accounting standards

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

The following standards, interpretations and amesmisito standards will be relevant to the Group Wwete not

effective at 31 December 2013 and have not beeledpp preparing these financial statements. Theu@'s initial

view of the impact of these accounting changesiibned below.

Pronouncement | Nature of Change Effective Date | Impact
Amendments to | These amendments are to the application guidand&Sn| IAS 32: Not
IAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’, thatriffasome | Financial significant.
32 of the requirement for offsetting financial asseiad | periods
‘Financial financial liabilities on the balance sheet. Somepsgr starting on
Instruments’ on | settlement systems may qualify for offsetting whéney | or after 1
Asset and exhibit certain characteristics akin to net setdam January
Liability 2014,
Offsetting
IFRS 10, This standard replaces IAS 27, ‘Consolidated angafe| Financial No change to
‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and SIC-12, ‘ConsolidatioSpecial| periods Group
Financial Purpose Entities’. It establishes a single contnobel that| starting on or | structure.
Statements’ applies to all entities, including those that wereviously| after 1 January
considered special purpose entities under SIC-18.| 2014 for
investor controls an investee when it is exposedhas| entities that
rights, to variable returns from the investee, dad the| apply IFRS as
ability to affect those returns through its powereiothe| adopted for
investee. The assessment of control is based dacédl and| use in the EU.
circumstances and the conclusion is reassesskdrd ts an
indication that there are changes in facts andigistances
The amendment was endorsed by the EU on 11 December
2012.
IFRS 11, ‘Joint IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31, ‘Interests in Joint Mexst and| Financial Not
arrangements’ SIC-13, ‘Jointly-controlled Entities — Nonmonetaryperiods significant.
Contributions by Venturers’. IFRS 11 classifies njoj starting on or
arrangements as either joint operations or joimtwes and after 1
focuses on the nature of the rights and obligatiohshe | January 2014
arrangement. IFRS 11 requires the use of the equithod
of accounting for joint arrangements by eliminatitite
option to use the proportionate consolidation methehich
is not applied by the Group. The amendment was rsedg
by the EU on 11 December 2012.
IFRS 12, IFRS 12 establishes the provision of information the | Financial No financial
‘Disclosures of nature, associated risks, and financial effectmtafrests in| periods impact
Interests in Other | subsidiaries, joint  arrangements, associates |astdrting on or
Entities’ unconsolidated structured entities, as disclosinjectives.| after 1 Additional
IFRS 12 requires more comprehensive disclosure, |alahuary 2014. | disclosures
specifies minimum disclosures that an entity mustidle to will be
meet the disclosure objectives. While each of taadards presented at 31
is effective for annual periods beginning on oreaftl December
January 2013, with earlier application permittediasy as 2014 in line
each of the other standards is also early appdietities are with
permitted to include any of the disclosure requiata in requirements.
IFRS 12 into their consolidated financial statersemithout
early adopting IFRS 12. The amendment was enddrged

the EU on 11 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.26 Impact of new accounting standards (continued)
Pronouncement | Nature of Change Effective Date | Impact
IAS 27 (revised), IAS 27 (revised) includes the provisions on sepmardtinancial Not
‘Separate financial statements that are left after the cdrgrovisions| periods significant.
Financial of IAS 27 have been included in the new IFRS 10e [ktarting on or
Statements’ revised standard was endorsed by the EU on 11 Omsrenafter 1 January
2012. 2014 for
entities that
apply IFRS as
adopted for
use in the EU.
Amendments to | These narrow-scope amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impaitmen Financial Not
IAS 36 Assets’ require disclosure of information about theeriods significant.
‘Recoverable recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amaun beginning on
Amount based on fair value less costs of disposal. Thpesobthesg or after 1
Disclosures disclosures is limited to the recoverable amouritrgfaired | January 2014.
for Non- assets that is based on fair value less costspbsil.
Financial
Assets’ The revised standard was endorsed by the EU on 19
on impaired December 2013.
assets
disclosures
Amendment to This narrow scope amendment to IAS 39 allows hedgmancial Not
IAS 39 accounting to continue where a derivative, whick haen| periods significant.
‘Novation of designated as a hedging instrument, is novatedffezte beginning on
derivatives clearing with a central counterparty as a resulta@fs or| or after 1
and regulation, if specific conditions are met. A naeatin this | January 2014.
continuation of context indicates that parties to a contract a¢peeeplace
hedge their original counterparty with a new one.
accounting’
The revised standard was endorsed by the EU on 19
December 2013.
IFRIC This interpretation deals with accounting for levimposed Financial Not
Interpretation by governments, principally when an entity shollderiods significant.
21: Levies recognise a liability to pay a levy. The interpteta | beginning on
clarifies that the obligating event that gives fisa liability | or after 1
to pay a levy is the activity described in the val | January 2014.
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy.
The new interpretation is still subject to EU ersgonent.
Amendments to | The narrow scope amendments apply to contributimom | Financial Not
IAS 19 employees or third parties to defined benefit plafise | periods significant.
‘Defined objective of the amendments is to simplify the agtimg | beginning on
benefit plans for contributions that are independent of the numbgk| or after 1 July
employee years of employee service, for example, employ2814.
contributions’ contributions that are calculated according to xedi
percentage of salary.
The revised standard is still subject to EU endues.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.26 Impact of new accounting standards (continued)
Pronouncement | Nature of Change Effective Date | Impact
Annual The annual improvements process provides a velfiele Financial Not
improvements making non-urgent but necessary amendments to IFHRSwiods significant.
2010 - 2012 The amendments are subject to EU endorsement. Anrheginning on
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle is a cobectif | or after 1 July
amendments to IFRSs in response to eight issuesssid] 2014.
during the 2010-2012 cycle for annual improvements
IFRSs.
Annual The annual improvements process provides a velfiele Financial Not
improvements making non-urgent but necessary amendments to LFHRS=iods significant.
2011 - 2013 The amendments are subject to EU endorsement. Anrheginning on
Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle is a cobhectif | or after 1 July
amendments to IFRSs in response to four issueesskt 2014.
during the 2011-2013 cycle.
IFRS 9, IFRS 9 is the standard which will replace IAS 3&nancial| The IASB has | The Group is
‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’. The §itage| tentatively assessing the
instruments’ of IFRS 9 dealt with the classification and meament of | decided that | impact of

financial assets and was issued in November 2009

the effective

addition to IFRS 9 dealing with financial liabis was| date is 1
issued in October 2010.
guidance was given on hedging and Own Credit Risk f

financial liabilities at fair value.

The main changes from IAS 39 are summarised aswsl|

» the multiple classification model in IAS 39 is rapéd
with a single model that has only two classificatio
categories: amortised cost and fair value;

» classification under IFRS 9 is driven by the ergity
business model for managing financial assets aed th
contractual characteristics of the financial agsets

» the requirement to separate embedded derivatives fr
financial asset hosts is removed;

e the cost exemption for unquoted equities is rempvegd

« most of IAS 39's requirements for financial liab#is
are retained, including amortised cost accountimg| f
most financial liabilities;

» guidance on separation of embedded derivatives |will
continue to apply to host contracts that are fir@nc
liabilities;

» fair value changes attributable to changes in onedit
risk for financial liabilities designated under tfesr
value option other than loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts are required to| be
presented in the statement of comprehensive income
unless the treatment would create or enlarge| an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. These amsuynt
are not subsequently reclassified to the incgame
statement but may be transferred within equity.sThi
change can now be early adopted; and

* new general hedge accounting model.

The completed standard has not yet been publishddsq
still subject to EU endorsement.

In November 2013, furthéanuary 2018.

adopting IFRS
9.

The impact of
IFRS 9 may
change as a
consequence g
further
developments
resulting

from the
IASB’s
ongoing
financial
instruments
project.
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN  APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In preparing the financial statements, the Groupasastimates and assumptions that affect the tegpamounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Egtimand judgements are continually evaluated andbased on
historical experience and other factors, includixgectations of future events that are believeldetoeasonable under
the circumstances. As management judgement invanesstimate of the likelihood of future eventsuaktresults
could differ from those estimates, which could efffdne future reported amounts of assets and ilielsil The estimates
and judgements that have had the most signifidéetteon the amounts recognised in the Group’sriia statements
are set out below.

Impairment charges on financial assets

The Group reviews its loan portfolios on an ongobagis to assess impairment. The Group first asseskether
objective evidence of impairment exists individyallor financial assets that are individually sigreint, and
individually or collectively for financial assetiat are not individually significant. Impairmentopisions are also
recognised for losses not specifically identifiad which, experience and observable data indi@te present in the
portfolio at the date of assessment.

Management uses estimates based on historicaélgesience for assets with credit risk characiessind objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the fodid, when scheduling its future cash flows. Thethodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amounttiaridg of future cash flows are reviewed reguladyreduce any
differences between loss estimates and actualelggsrience. The use of historical loss experiescgupplemented
with significant management judgment to assesshehneturrent economic and credit conditions are shiahthe actual
level of inherent losses is likely to differ frorhat suggested by historical experience. In nornr@umstances,
historical experience provides objective and radéviaformation from which to assess inherent losthiw each

portfolio.

In other circumstances, historical loss experigmvides less relevant information about the inhetess in a given
portfolio at the balance sheet date, for exampleeres there have been changes in economic condgiacts that the
most recent trends in risk factors are not fulljexeted in the historical information.

In these circumstances, such risk factors are takenaccount when calculating the appropriate le'eé impairment
allowances, by adjusting the impairment loss ders@lely from historical loss experience.

The estimation of impairment losses is subjectroeutainty, and is highly sensitive to factors sashthe level of
economic activity, unemployment rates, bankruptends, property price trends, and interest rateg. dssumptions
underlying this judgement are highly subjectiveeThethodology and the assumptions used in calnglatipairment
losses are reviewed regularly in the light of diffeces between loss estimates and actual lossiexper

In the case of loans and advances to customermsctigh impairment provision is also made for imp®nt charges
that have been incurred but not yet recognised ey &ssumption used in calculating this charge éseimergence
period between the occurrence and reporting ofab® event. A change in this key assumption woalkkmo material
impact on these financial statements. See noter2édre information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN  APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

The taxation charge accounts for amounts due talfesuthorities in the various territories in whitle Group operates
and includes estimates based on a judgement adppkcation of law and practice in certain caseslétermine the

quantification of any liabilities arising. In arimg at such estimates, management assesses ttieeretarits and risks
of tax treatments assumed, taking into accounutstaf, judicial and regulatory guidance and, wheppropriate,

external advice.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had a net defeaeddset of £1.5m (31 December 2012: net defeavetability of
£1.0m).

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extattiths probable that future taxable profits vk available against
which deductible temporary differences and unwilisax losses can be utilised. The recognition défarred tax asset
relies on management’s judgements surrounding ithieability and sufficiency of future taxable prefitand the future
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences

To the extent that the recognition of a deferred daset is dependent on sufficient future profiighia degree of
estimation and the use of assumptions are requitteel Group’s judgement takes into considerationirtigact of both
positive and negative evidence, including histdrioaancial performance, projections of future thlaincome, the
impact of tax legislation and future reversals xitgng taxable temporary differences.

The Group is subject to income taxation and sigaift judgement can be required in determining ttowigion for

taxation. There are many calculations for which whénate taxation determination may be uncertairparticular in

light of HMRC focus on the Group's industry and ianreased risk of litigation, the outcome of whichn be
unpredictable. The Group recognises provisionddration based on estimates of the taxes thatilely ko become
due. There is a risk that the final taxation outearould be significantly different from the amouttiat are currently
recorded and any such differences will impact tmeent income taxation and deferred taxation piowisin the period
in which such outcome is determined.

3. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group has two operating segments as detailevb&hese segments reflect the internal finaneia management
reporting structure and are organised as follows:

Lending
The Lending business offers a variety of lendingises ranging from banking advances, leasing anch foans for
consumer and commercial customers.

Divisional Centre
Divisional Centre mainly acts as an intermediatieling and capital management unit.

The analysis of results by operating segment isdas the information used by the chief operatiagiglon maker to
allocate resources and assess performance. Trimmsabetween the operating segments are on noromamercial

terms and conditions. Internal charges and tragsieing adjustments have been reflected in théopmance of each
business. Revenue sharing agreements are usetbdatal external customer revenues to operating setgmon an
arm’s length basis.

The accounting policies of the reportable segmargéshe same as the Group’s accounting policiesrithesl in note 1
to the financial statements. Segment profitabibtyneasured by deducting operating expenses anairimgnt charges
from total operating income.

All income is generated in the United Kingdom.

Revenues derived from transactions with the Barkeddind Group are as set out in note 29 Relatety Faansactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Divisional
Group Lending centre  Eliminations Group totals
Year ended 31 December 20: £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Interest income 4.5 1.0 - 5.5
Interest expense (3.1) (0.9) - (4.0)
Net interest income 1.4 0.1 - 1.t
Other income 1.9 0.1 - 2.0
Total operating income 3.3 0.2 - 3.5
Operating expenses (0.5) - - (0.5)
Depreciation and amortisation (0.2) - (0.2)
Operating expense (0.7 - - (0.7
Impairment releases on loans and advanc
customers 0.5 - - 0.5
Profit before taxation 3.1 0.2 - 3.3
Capital expenditure - - - -
External assets 167.6 407.5 - 575.1
Inter segment assets 2.4 92.5 (94.9) -
Total asset 170.( 500.( (94.9 575.1
External liabilities 88.0 442.5 - 530.5
Inter segment liabilities 73.0 21.9 (94.9) -
Total liabilities 161.( 464.¢ (94.9 530.t
External customers 7.0 1.1 - 8.1
Total gross external revenu 7.C 1.1 - 8.1

Gross external revenue comprises interest incoee,ahd commission income and other operating incante is
generated from lending businesses with externail mistomers and the related financial assetdiahitities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)
Divisional
Group Lending centre  Eliminations Group totals
Year ended 31 December 20: £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Interest income 5.1 4.6 - 9.7
Interest expense (6.7) (2.1) - (8.8)
Net interest income (1.6) 2.5 - 0.6
Other income 4.0 0.3 - 4.3
Total operating income 2.4 2.E - 5.2
Operating expenses (3.2) (0.5) - 3.7)
Depreciation and amortisation (0.2) - - (0.2)
Operating expense (3.4) (0.5) - (3.9)
Impairment releases on loans and advanc
customers 0.4 - - 0.4
Loss on disposal of business activities (4.5) (11.5) - (16.0)
Loss before taxatiot (5.1) (9.2) - (14.3
Capital expenditure - - - -
External assets 181.2 457.3 - 638.5
Inter segment assets 2.5 92.6 (95.1) -
Total asset 183.7 549.¢ (95.1 638.t
External liabilities 190.9 404.3 - 595.2
Inter segment liabilities 73.0 22.1 (95.1) -
Total liabilities 263.¢ 426.¢ (95.1 595.2
External customers 9.5 5.1 - 14.6
Total gross external revenu 9.t 5.1 - 14.€
4, NET INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE
Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Interest income
Loans and advances to custor 0.€ 1.t
Amounts due from the Ultimate Parent and fellow IBahlreland 4.9 82
Group companie ' )
5.5 9.7

Included within interest income is £0.03m (yearemh@1 December 2012: £0.03m) of interest on imgddimans and
advances to customers on which specific provisitenee been recognised. Included within interest imeads lease
income of £0.2m (year ended 31 December 2012; £0.6m
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4, NET INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE (continued)
Year endec Year endec
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
£m £m
Interest expens
Amounts due to the Ultimate Parent and fellow Bahkeland 06 3.2
Group companie ' '
Subordinated liabilities (including amortisationdsbt issue 09 11
expenses, premiums and discoL ' '
Preference shar 2.t 2.7
Othel 1.8
4.C 8.8

Interest expense - Other relates to non tradiregést payable to a third party creditor.

5. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE
Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Fee and commission incorn
Other fees receivat 0.3 0.t
Fee and commission income from the Ultimate Paaadtfellow
Bank of Ireland Group companies 2.2 6.9
Total fee and commission incornr 2.5 7.4
Fee and commission expen
Fee and commission expense to the Ultimate P 3.¢ 0.€
Total fee and commission expen 3.9 0.€

Fee and commission expense to the Ultimate Paseheireimbursement of any funding costs incursethb Group in
its role as a funding intermediary for the Ultim&arent.

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Derivatives held for trading lo (2.2)
Foreign currency translation gain/(lc 34 (1.3
Other incom 1.C
3.4 (2.5)

Derivatives held for trading
Derivatives held for trading were instruments whigdre economic hedges of the interest rate ordarekchange risks
in financial liabilities, to which hedge accountingis not applied. This loss was refunded by tharalie Parent and is

included in fee and commission income in note Svabo

Foreign exchange
The foreign currency translation gain £3.4m (yeadezl 31 December 2012: loss £1.3m) relates to rmeyrpositions

undertaken on behalf of the Bank of Ireland Grdbypch gains and losses are refunded by the Ultilatent and are
included in fee and commission income and expessgpropriate in note 5 above.

Other income
For the year ended 31 December 2012, other incaimaply relates to fees paid which were refundedmy the year.
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7. OPERATING EXPENSES
Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Staff costs (note : 0.1 0.3
Depreciation (note 1 0.2 0.2
Other administrative expent 0.4 0.8
Revaluation of property (note 2.€
0.7 3.9
Group Company
Year endec Year endec Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201 31 December 201 31 December 201
£'00C £'00C £'00C £'00C
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory audit fees 106.7 118.5 63.8 70.9
Other assuranc
services - - - -
Taxation services - - -
Other non-audi
services - - - -
106.7 118.t 63.€ 70.€

A portion of the audit fees in respect of the Gramp Company were borne by the Bank of Ireland @rou

8. STAFF COSTS
Year endec Year endec
Continuing Operations 31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Wages and salari 0.1 0.3
0.1 0.3
Year endec Year endec
Discontinued Operations 31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Wages and salari 0.4
Social security cos 0.1
0.5

The average monthly number of persons includinge@ars employed by the Group during the year ensled
December 2013 was 1 (year ended@&tember 2012: 5).

The Group participates in the Bank of Ireland SRéhsions Fund pension scheme. This is a definedfibacheme,
the Group’s share of the plan in which risks ararsti with other entities under common control, asdd on the
respective payrolls. This plan is included in tbasolidated financial statements of the Bank dahéd Group.
Contributions paid to The Governor and CompanyhefBank of Ireland on behalf of the Group’s emp&s/amounted
to £nil for the year ended 31 December 2013 (28b#). There were no outstanding amounts to be frttie scheme
by the Group as at 31 December 2013 (2012: £nil).

Refer to note 31 on page 63 for details on thedbirs’ emoluments.
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9. LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The sale of Burdale Financial Holdings Limited toeM§ Fargo International Banking Corporation wasead in

December 2011 and was completed on 1 February 2012.

The transfer of NIIB Group to Bank of Ireland (Uglc was completed on 18 January 2012.

Loss on disposal

Burdale Financial Holdings Limite
NIIB Group

10. TAXATION CHARGE

Continuing operations

Current tax:

Current yee

Adjustments in respect of prior ye
Deferred tax (note 20):

Current yee

Taxation charge in respect of continuing operatior
Discontinued operation:

Current tax:

Current yee

Adjustments in respect of prior ye

Taxation credit in respect of discontinued operatias

Taxation charge
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Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
115
- 4.5
- 16.C
Group
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

£m £m
4.1 (0.3
0.4 20.€
4.5 20.2
(2.5) 0.t
(2.5) 0.t
2.C 20.€
0.€

(2.9)

(2.3)

(2.3)

2.C 18.F




BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. TAXATION CHARGE (continued)

The reconciliation of tax on profits on continuiagd discontinued operations at the standard UKaratjpn tax rate to
the Group's actual tax charge for the years endddegember 2013 and 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012

£m £m

Profit/(loss) before taxatic 3.3 (12.2°
Tax calculated at a rate of 23.25% (2012: 24 0.8 (3.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpc 0.€ 1.3
Loss on disposal of business activi 3.8
Adjustments in respect of prior ye 0.4 17.0*
Other adjustmen 0.2 (0.7)
Taxation charge 2.C 18.t

"The adjustments in respect of prior years inclimgeimnpact on this Group of an adverse court juddrimethat year.

There were no items reflected in the statementtedrocomprehensive income in either of the yeadedr31 December
2013 or 31 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The results of NIIB Group and Burdale Financial ¢iogs Limited are included within ‘Discontinued ogions’ in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the yeara&BdeDecember 2012.

The transfer of the NIIB Group to Bank of Irelardk() plc was completed in January 2012.

The sale of Burdale Financial Holdings Limited teeN¥ Fargo International Banking Corporation wampteted in
February 2012.

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Group

Year ended to Year ended to

31 December 201 31 December 201

£m £m

Interest incom 3.k

Fee and commission inco (0.3)

Other operating incon 0.1

Operating income 3.3

Operating expens (0.6)

Impairment losse (0.2

Loss on disposal of operati (0.4)

Profit before taxation of discontinued operation 2.1

Tax credi 2.3

Profit from discontinued operations after taxatior 4.4

Profit attributable to:

Shareholders of the Par 4.4
Non-controlling interes

Profit from discontinued operations 4.4

Cash flows attributable to discontinued operations

The table below includes results for NIIB Group @&wdale Financial Holdings Limited up to the daféheir
respective disposals during the year ended 31 Deeef012.

For the period 1
January 2012 to date

of disposal

£m

Operating prof 2.1
Other non-cas (0.2)
Net change in loans and advances to custc (10.0)
Net change in other ass (0.2)
Net change in held for sale assets and liabi 8.2
Net change in liabilities to bar 14.6
Net change in other liabiliti 10.2
Tax paid (2.9)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 21.8
Net change in cash and cash equivalel 21.¢
Opening cash and cash equivalents 3.8
Closing cash and cash equivalents 25.¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

12. COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

As permitted by the Companies Act 2006 Section 408 Company’s Income Statement and the Compangter@ent
of Comprehensive Income have not been includekdge consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s profit after tax for the year endéd>@cember 2013 is £nil (31 December 2012: prdfily.1m).

13. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS

Group Company
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Due from the Ultimate Pare
and fellow Group undertaking
- Balances with less than 3 mon
original maturity included in cash
equivalents 48.3 141.5 5.3 105.5
- Balances with over 3 months original
maturity 518.7 456.5 390.9 323.1
567.( 598.( 396.2 428.€
14. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Group
Year endec Year endec
31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Loans and advances to custor 1.1 2.3
Finance lease and hire purchase receiv 5.7 12.6
Gross loans and advances to custo 6.8 14.9
Less: allowance for impairment on loans and advateeustomers (0.2) (0.9)
6.€ 14.C

A further analysis of loans and advances to custsisedisclosed in note 24 Credit Risk.
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14. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
Finance lease and hire purchase receivables

The loans and advances to customers include finkras®e receivables (including hire purchase agratshewhich
may be analysed as follows:

Group
31 December 201 31 December 201

£m £m
Gross investment in finance lease
Not later than 1 ye 2.8 8.1
Later than 1 year and not later than 5y 2.0 4.4
Later than 5 yea 2.2 2.2

7.0 14.7
Unearned future finance income on finance le (1.3) (1.9
Net investment in finance lea: 5.7 12.€
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as
follows:
Not later than 1 ye 2.3 7.C
Later than 1 year and not later than 5y 1.6 3.7
Later than 5 yea 1.8 1.9

5.7 12.€
Allowance for impairment on loans and advances toustomers

Group
31 December 201 31 December 201

£m £m
Balance at beginning of ye 0.9 3.1
Impairment (releases)/cha
- continuing operatior (0.5) (0.4)
- discontinued operatio - 0.2
Write offs (0.3) (2.1)
Other movemen 0.1 0.1
Balance at end of ye 0.2 0.¢

Loans and advances to customers with a remainingcéo contractual maturity of less than 12 mondtissat the
balance sheet date is £2.6m (31 December 2012n}6.5

The Group’s material leasing arrangements inclume grovision of instalment credit and leasing ficearfor both
consumer and commercial customers.

At 31 December 2013, the accumulated allowanceuf@ollectible minimum lease payments receivable firdk (31

December 2012: £0.2m). At 31 December 2013 and &dember 2012, there was no unguaranteed residlis va
accruing to the benefit of the lessor.
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15. INVESTMENT IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Company

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

£m £m
Balance at the beginning of y: 1.7 6.9
Impairment of investment in subsidial - (2.6)
Liquidation of subsidiarie (0.1) (2.6)
Balance at the end of the ye: 1.€ 1.7

The Company’s investments in Group undertakingsreveewed if events or circumstances indicate thmairment
may have occurred, by comparing the carrying valfieach investment to its recoverable amount. Apaimment
charge arises if the carrying value exceeds theverable amount.

A review of the carrying amount of investments imb@ undertakings of the Company has been perforanefil
December 2013. The review has resulted in no impait of investments in Group undertakings in thadieg and
Divisional Centre segments held by the Company @tember 2012: £2.6m). Any impairment is chargedh®
Company income statement only (note 12).

Principal subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings are listetbwe Information is only given for those subsidewithat in the
Directors’ opinion materially affect the figuresostn in the financial statements.

All shares in subsidiary undertakings are ordirgrgres.

The Company owns the total issued share capitallifts subsidiary undertakings as at 31 Decemlifdr32and 31
December 2012.

Principal subsidiary undertakings Principal activity Country Statutory year end
of incorporation

Bank of Ireland Britain Holdings Limited Holding @gpany UK 31 December

Bank of Ireland Business Finance Limited Leasing rthiern Ireland 31 December

BOI GP No 1 Limited Holding Company UK 31 December

Bristol & West plc Investment UK 31 December
Company

One Temple Quay Limited Property UK 31 December
Management

BOI Capital Funding (No 1) LP, BOI Capital Fundifigo 2) LP, BOI Capital Funding (No 3) LP and BOlgzal
Funding (No 4) LP, which are funding vehicles fhe Bank of Ireland Group, have been included inrésailts of the
Group using acquisition accounting on the basis ttie&a Company controls these entities. The gemmaher of these
companies is BOI GP No 1 Limited, a wholly ownetsidiary of the Company.

The Group avails of the exemption provided undeguRation 7 of The Partnerships (Accounts) Reguhesi@008.
Under this exemption, the accounts of the Limitedtferships which BOI GP No 1 Limited manages ateraquired
to be filed as appended to the annual financidestants of BOI GP No 1 Limited as the Limited Parships are
consolidated within the financial statements of @reup.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Group
31 December 201

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2013
Disposals
Revaluation

At 31 December 2013
Accumulated depreciatior
At 1 January 2013
Charge for year
Disposals

At 31 December 2013
Net book value

At 31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2012
Disposals
Revaluation

At 31 December 2012
Accumulated depreciatior
At 1 January 2012
Charge for year
Disposals

At 31 December 2012
Net book value

At 31 December 2012

Computer and

Land and other
buildings Adaptations equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
25.9 2.4 - 28.3
(25.9) (2.4) - (28.3)
(1.8) - (1.8)
(0.2) - (0.2)
2.0 - 2.0
Computer and
Land and other
buildings Adaptations equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
28.5 2.4 0.3 31.2
- (0.3) (0.3)
(2.6) - - (2.6)
25.¢ 2.4 - 28.2
(1.6) jo.2 (1.8)
(0.2) - (0.2)
- 0.2 0.2
(1.8) - (1.8)
25.¢ 0.€ 26.5

On 3 October 2013 the board of directors of One d@leruay Limited, a subsidiary within the Groupldsthe above
property to the Governor and Company of the Banked&nd at its net book value by way of signedddektransfer.

Property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2@1@ &t fair value was £Nil (31 December 2012: £&5.9The
historical cost of property, plant and equipmentra fair value at 31 December 2013 was £Nil (Hc@&nber 2012:
£34.3m). The net book value of property, plant agdipment at 31 December 2013 held at cost lessnadated
depreciation and impairment amounted to £Nil (3tdeber 2012: £0.6m).

Following a revaluation of all of the Group’s frexth properties and long leasehold properties 84 &december 2010,
properties were valued at market value. Adaptatiorks were accounted for on the basis of depreatihigtoric cost.
The properties were valued by qualified external/eyors (Lisney) in accordance with the Appraisadl &/aluation
Standards of The Royal Institution of CharteredvByors.

A further valuation was carried out on 31 Decen@t2 which resulted in an impairment of £2.6m.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(b) Operating Lease

The Group leased a commercial property to the Bdrikeland Group until 3 October 2013. There wave 15 years
leases expiring on 28 September 2015. As notecherptevious page, this property was sold to Thee@wr and
Company of the Bank of Ireland and the two 15 jJleases were merged as operating leaseholder agkofder
thereby ceasing to exist.

Minimum future rentals are the rentals receivalvidar operating leases up to the next availablekbwption where this
exists or to expiry date of the lease. As at 31dbdmer 2012 the minimum future rentals under norcelable
operating leases were as follows:

Receivable 3:

Period December 201

£m
Not later than 1 ye 2.9
Later than one year but not later than 5 y 5.2

Later than 5 yea -

17. OTHER ASSETS

Group Company
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Amounts due from Bank of Ireland U
Holdings plc subsidiaries - - 71.5 71.5
- 71.F 71.F

Other assets above relate primarily to a loangotesidiary company. This interest free loan dogs$awe a fixed term
and is repayable on demand.

18. LIABILITIES TO BANKS

Group Company
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Due to Ultimate Parent ar_1d fellow Ba 4512 486.2 415.6 4317
of Ireland Group companies
451.2 486.2 415.€ 431.7

Liabilities to banks are primarily short term, nimterest bearing loans of less than 12 months.

19. OTHER LIABILITIES

Group Company

31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 1.7 1.8
Accruals and deferred income 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.1

Other sundry payables 14.5 15.4 - -

14.¢ 15.¢ 1.8 1.9

Included in other sundry payables is accrued istgpayable of £12.7m (31 December 2012: £12.9malfing to non
trading interest payable to a third party creditor.

Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc - Company No: NI 0066941 46



BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. OTHER LIABILITIES (continued)

Other liabilities of the Group with a remaining joer to contractual maturity of less than 12 mordksat the balance
sheet date are £14.9m (31 December 2012:; £15.8m).

Other liabilities of the Company with a remainingripd to contractual maturity of less than 12 mendls at the
balance sheet date are £1.8m (31 December 20 nEIAll, other liabilities are unsecured and ietdrfree.

20. DEFERRED TAXATION

Group
31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012
£m £m
The movement on the deferred tax account is agvisl
At beginning of yez (1.0) 3.3
Income statement credit/(char 25 (0.5)
Disposal of subsidia - 3.9
Othel - 0.1
As at end of yea 1.t (1.0
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attribiablthe following items:
Group
31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012
Deferred tax asset £m £m
Leased asse 1.5 2.1
Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed asse (3.1)
Represented on the balance sheet as follo
Deferred tax asse 1.5 -
Deferred tax liabilitie - (1.0

In presenting the deferred tax balances above,ruAde12, the Group offsets tax assets and liaeditvhere:

- an entity has a legally enforceable right to efffsurrent tax assets against current tax liaésljtand

- the deferred tax assets and the deferred talitied relate to taxation levied by the same ta@tauthority on the
same taxable entity.

The deferred tax asset has been recognised onaslie that it is probable it will be recovered as Directors are
satisfied that it is probable that the Group wilb sufficient future taxable profits against whibk deferred tax asset
can be utilised. The Directors do not expect tHerded tax asset to reverse within the next twehamths.

The deferred taxation charge in the income statéommprises the following temporary differences:

Group
31 Decembe 31 Decembe
2013 2012
£m £m
Accelerated tax depreciati (2.8) 0.7
Othel 0.3 (0.2)
(2.5) 0.5

The UK Government announced that the main rateogfaration tax would reduce to 21% from 1 April 20tb be

followed by a further reduction to 20% for yeargjio@ing on or after 1 April 2015. The reductionthe corporation
tax rate to 20% from 1 April 2015 was substantivehacted at the balance sheet date and the effddsa@hange has
been to reduce the deferred tax asset at 31 Dec&ihd by £0.3 million.
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21. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

Group Company
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe

201z 201z 201: 201z
Undated Loan Capital Note £m £m £m £m
Bank of Ireland UK Holdings p
€600m 7.4% Guaranteed Step-up
Callable Perpetual Preferred
Securities” a, b 26.7 26.1 26.7 26.1

26.7 26.1 26.7 26.1

W jsted on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

All subordinated liabilities of the Group and Compare expected to be settled more than 12 mofiiasthe balance
sheet date.

The Group and Company has €32.01m nominal (31 Deee@012: €32.01m) of the €600m 7.4% Guaranteeg-Ste
Callable Perpetual Preferred Securities in issue.

The undated loan capital is as follows:

€) The securities are redeemable in whole or m @athe option of the Company (the ‘Issuer’) sdbjto the
prior consent of the Central Bank of Ireland andhef Ultimate Parent, at their principal amountetingr with
any outstanding payments on 7 June 2012, or angatppayment date thereafter. They bear intereg of
month Euribor plus 3.26% per annum, reset quarterly

(b) The rights and claims of the holder of the Bnefd Securities are subordinated to the claimthefsenior
creditors of the Issuer or of the Ultimate Pareag the case may be) in that no payment in resgeitteo
Preferred Securities or the guarantee in respetttesh shall be due and payable except to the egtanthe
Issuer or the Ultimate Parent (as applicable) isestd and could make such payment and still beesdlv
immediately thereafter. Upon any winding up of theuer or the Ultimate Parent (in respect of claimder
the guarantee), the holders of the Preferred Seukvill rank pari passu with the holders of thesinsenior
class or classes of preference shares or Shaey(jfof the Issuer or of the Ultimate Parent theissue and in
priority to all other shareholders of the Issued afhthe Ultimate Parent.

22. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Group
Rate 31 December 201 31 December 201
% £m £m
Preference shar 8.12¢ 32.€ 32.€

Other borrowed funds represent the interest ofl tharties in the preference shares of Bristol & ¥yés

These preference shares, which are non-redeenmaiieequity shares, rank equally amongst themsedgesegards
participation in profits and in priority to the andry shares of Bristol & West plc.

Holders of the preference shares are entitleddeive, in priority to the holders of any other slag shares in Bristol &
West plc, a non-cumulative dividend at a fixed na¢e annum payable in equal half year instalmentsriears on 15
May and 15 November each year. The preferenceatidicon the preference shares will only be payablbe extent
that payment can be made out of profits availabtedfstribution as at each dividend payment datacicordance with
the provisions of the UK Companies Acts.
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23. SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company 31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m

Authorised
100,000,000 units (2012: 100,000,000 units) of

. 100 100
ordinary shares of £1 each
Allotted and fully paid
2,477,841 units (2012: 2,477,841 units) of o5 o5

ordinary shares of £1 each

All units of ordinary shares in issue carry the sarting right.
24, CREDIT RISK
Credit risk

The Bank of Ireland Group’s approach to risk is @et in its Group Risk Framework which identifidetBank of
Ireland Group’s formal governance process (‘Riskv&nance Framework’), its framework for setting iRippetite
and its approach to risk identification, assesspmarasurement, management and reporting.

Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss resgjtirom a counterparty being unable to meet itsremttal obligations to
the Group in respect of loans or other financiahgsactions.

The Group is in the process of winding down itscheal loan portfolio in an orderly manner to mingmiany potential
loss that the Group might incur from such a stratéthe credit risk management of the residual Ipartfolio is
outsourced to the Bank of Ireland Group, and isaged by it in line with its established Risk Gowaroe Framework,
and subject to the Bank of Ireland Group Crediidyof Group Credit Framework (which is approvedthg Bank of
Ireland Group’s Court of Directors) and other raletyBank of Ireland business unit and sector/prodregit policies.

Credit risk in Bank of Ireland Group is controlledthin the Risk Governance Framework which incogtes the Court
of Directors, risk committees appointed by the @oof Directors (e.g. Court Risk Committee, Group ditu
Committee), and also the Group Risk Policy Commited its appointed committees (i.e. Group Credin@ittee,

Risk Measurement Committee, Portfolio Review Corterit.

The Risk Governance Framework is supported by tapkBof Ireland Group’s management body, with credik
responsibilities extending throughout the orgamsabased on the three lines of defence approach.

The organisational structure for credit risk mamaget is designed to facilitate reporting and eswaleof credit risk
concerns from business units and credit risk femstiupwards to Group Risk Policy Committee (‘GRR@&ig Court
Risk Committee (‘CRC’), the Group Audit Committe SAC’) and the Court of Directors (‘Court’), and eeying
approved credit risk management policies and datssio business units.

Impairment criteria and provisions

Loan loss provisioning or impairment allowancesuieed under IAS 39 are based on losses that hasme ineurred at
the balance sheet date and requires that thellgdstive evidence of impairment and that the loss been incurred.
The standard does not permit the recognition oetqul losses, no matter how likely these expecissks may appear.

For further information on the Group’s policy ongairment provisions see section 1.13 on page 2Beisummary of
significant accounting policies.

The Group's primary market is the UK and all expesuware originated and managed in the UK.
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24. CREDIT RISK (continued)
Impairment criteria and provisions (continued)

Industry analysis

Business and other servi
Manufacturing

Distributior

Transpor

Gross loans and advances to custome

31 December 201

31 December 201

£m £m
51 10.9
0.3 0.9
0.1 0.1
1.3 3.0
6.8 14.¢

The tables below summarise the Group's financisttasover the following categories: neither past dar impaired,
past due but not impaired and impaired. Exposuredased on the gross amount, before provisiongrpairment.
Other financial instruments include loans and adearto banks, derivative financial instruments held to maturity

investments.

31 December 201

Financial assets neither past due nor impaired
Financial assets past due but not impaired
Impaired financial assets

Other financial

Total

31 December 201

Financial assets neither past due nor impaired
Financial assets past due but not impaired
Impaired financial assets

Total

Financial assets neither past due nor impaired

31 December 201

High quality
Satisfactory quality
Acceptable quality

Total

31 December 201

High quality
Satisfactory quality
Acceptable quality

Total

Commercial instruments Total
£m £m £m
6.5 567.( 573.t
0.3 0.3
6.8 567.( 573.¢
Other financial
Commercial instruments Total
£m £m £m
134 598.( 611.£
0.3 - 0.3
1.2 - 1.2
14.¢€ 598.( 612.¢
Other financial
Commercial instruments Total
£m £m £m
6.3 567.( 573.2
0.2 0.2
6.5 567.( 573.k
Other financial
Commercial instruments Total
£m £m £m
13.2 598.( 611.2
0.2 - 0.2
13.4 598.( 611.£
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24. CREDIT RISK (continued)
Financial assets past due but not impaired

The Group has no financial assets past due buipatired at 31 December 2013.

Commercial Total
31 December 201 £m £m
Past due up to 30 days 0.3 0.3
Past due 31 — 60 days
Past due 61 — 90 days
Total 0.3 0.3
Impaired financial assets

Commercial Total
31 December 201 £m £m
Impaired financial assets 0.3 0.3
Allowance at the beginning of the year 0.¢ 0.9
Amounts written off (0.3 (0.3)
Charge against income statement (0.5) (0.5)
Recoveries 0.1 0.1
Unwind of discount
Allowance at the end of the yeas 0.2 0.2

Allowances include specific and ‘incurred but neported’ (‘IBNR’) allowances. IBNR allowances ca@ kecognised
on all categories of loans for losses not spedifigdentified but which, experience and observathga indicate, are
present in the portfolio at the date of assessment.

Persona Commercial Total
31 December 201 £m £m £m
Impaired financial assets - 1.2 1.2
Allowance at the beginning of the year 14.2 18.¢ 33.1
Amounts written off (0.5) (2.2) (2.7)
Charge against income statement (0.1) - (0.1)
Recoveries 0.1 0.1 0.2
Transfer to other Group units (13.8 (15.9 (29.7
Unwind of discount - 0.1 0.1
Allowance at the end of the yee - 0.¢ 0.8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24. CREDIT RISK (continued)

Repossessed collateral

During the year ended 31 December 2013 the Groolp possession of collateral held as security of Emiar ended
31 December 2012: £nil). Repossessed assets ateasosoon as practicable, with the proceeds appalgainst

outstanding indebtedness.

Company

The tables below summarise the Company's finanagsdets over the following categories: neither phst nor
impaired, past due but not impaired and impairecpdSures are based on the gross amount, beforésiors for

impairment.

31 December 201

Financial assets neither past due nor imp.
Financial assets past due but not imps
Impaired financial asse

Total

31 December 201

Financial assets neither past due nor imp.
Financial assets past due but not imps
Impaired financial asse

Total

Financial assets neither past due nor impaired

31 December 201

High quality

Satisfactory qualit

Acceptable qualit

Lower quality but not past due nor impai
Total

31 December 201

High quality

Satisfactory qualit

Acceptable qualit

Lower quality but not past due nor impai
Total
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Other financial

instruments Total
£m £m
396.2 396.2
396.7 396.2

Other financial
instruments Total
£m £m
428.¢ 428.¢
428.¢ 428.¢

Other financial
instruments Total
£m £m
396.2 396.2
396.2 396.2

Other financial
instruments Total
£m £m
428.¢ 428.¢
428.€ 428.€




BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will exgpience difficulty in financing its assets and/oratieg its contractual
payment obligations as they fall due, or will oblg able to do so at substantially above the piiegaiharket cost of
funds. Liquidity risk arises from differences imihg between cash inflows and outflows. Cash inflaave driven,
among other things, by the maturity structure @n® and investments held by the Group, while casfiows are

driven, inter alia, by the term of the debt issusdthe Group and the outflows from deposit accourekl for

customers. Liquidity risk can increase due to thexpected lengthening of maturities or non-repaynoérassets, a
sudden withdrawal of deposits or the inability édimance maturing debt. These factors are ofteocéed with times
of distress or adverse events such as a credigrdtwngrade(s) or economic or financial turmoil.

The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is governey the Bank of Ireland Group’s Risk Appetite Stagemnand
associated limits and the Bank of Ireland Groupiading and Liquidity policy, both of which are apped by the
Bank of Ireland Court of Directors on the recomnaiah of the GRPC and the Court Risk Committee. djperation
of this policy is delegated to the Bank of IreldBbup Asset and Liability Committee (‘ALCO’). TheaBk of Ireland
Group Treasury, on behalf of ALCO, is responsibbe monitoring liquidity risk and for the developnteand
monitoring of liquidity policy. In addition to itsternal liquidity risk management processes, theu@ complies with
the requirements of the Financial Services Autlianitrespect of liquidity management.

The table below summarises the maturity profilahaf Group’s financial instrument liabilities at Becember 2013
and 31 December 2012 based on contractual undissbugpayment obligations. The Group does not nmatiggidity
risk on the basis of contractual maturity. Instéael Group manages liquidity risk based on expectst flows. The
balances will not agree directly to the balanceshim balance sheet as the table incorporates siii ftaws, on an
undiscounted basis, related to both principal aterést payments.

Group
As at 31 December 2013 Upto3 3-12 Over 5

Demand months months  1-5 years years Total

£m £m £m Em £m £m

Liabilities to bank<® 451.2 - - - - 451.2
Subordinated liabilities and other
capital instrument® - 0.2 0.7 3.7 31.3 35.9
Other borrowed fund® - - 2.6 10.6 32.6 45.8
Total 451.% 0.2 3.3 14.¢ 63.¢ 532.¢

As part of the Bank of Ireland Group's capital ngarmaent activities, the Group may repurchase cerdiits

subordinated liabilities earlier than the matuigtes listed in the above table. The Group matthesmaturity of
subordinated liabilities with the maturity of itdapements with other Bank of Ireland entities. Efi@re any such
capital management activities would not impactlidpeidity position of the Group.

As at 31 December 2012 Upto3 3-12 Over 5

Demand months months  1-5 years years Total

£m £m £Em £m £m £m

Liabilities to banks® 496.4 - - - - 496.4
Subordinated liabilities and other
capital instrument® - 0.2 0.7 3.7 30.7 35.3
Other borrowed fund® - - 2.6 10.6 32.6 45.8
Total 496.4 0.2 3.3 14.: 63.2 577.k

@ Liabilities to banks primarily relates to non-irgst bearing loans.
@ |nterest cash flows included to perpetuity.
® Interest cash flows included for 5 years.

There were no derivative financial instrumentslaf&cember 2013 and 31 December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

Company
As at 31 December 2013 Upto3 3-12 Over 5
Demand months months  1-5 years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Liabilities to bank<® 415.6 - - - - 415.6
Subordinated liabilities and other
capital instrument® - 0.2 0.7 3.7 31.3 35.9
Total 415.¢ 0.2 0.7 3.7 31.2 451t
As at 31 December 2012 Upto3 3-12 Over 5
Demand months months  1-5 years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Liabilities to bank<® 431.7 - - - - 431.7
Subordinated liabilities and other
capital instrument® - 0.2 0. 3.7 30.7 35.3
Total 431.7 0.2 0.7 3.7 30.7 467.C

® Liabilities to banks primarily relates to non-irest bearing loans.
@ Interest cash flows included to perpetuity.

There were no derivative financial instrumentslafD&cember 2013 and 31 December 2012.
26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabities

The fair value of a financial instrument is defireslthe price that would be received to sell artawspaid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date.

Where possible, the Group calculates fair valuagusbservable market prices. Where market pricesiar available,

fair values are determined using valuation techedéqwhich may include discounted cash flow modelsoonparisons

to instruments with characteristics either identaasimilar to those of the instruments held bg tBroup or at recent
arm’s length market transactions. These fair vahresclassified within a three-level fair valueraiehy, based on the
inputs used to value the instrument. Where thetsmmight be categorised within different levelstoé fair value

hierarchy, the fair value measurement in its ettiig categorised in the same level of the hienaahthe lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurem&he levels are defined as:

Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in activeketa for identical assets or liabilities that Hgity can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2inputs are inputs other than quoted prices inadudihin Level 1 that are observable for the assdiability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the assenbililiy.
Transfers between different levels are assesstha &nd of all reporting periods.

(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities recgnised and subsequently measured at fair value

All financial instruments are initially recognised fair value. The Group does not have Level 1,elé/or Level 3
financial assets and liabilities subsequently mesbsuat fair value at 31 December 2013. All derivadi were
terminated during the year ended 31 December 20lli®\ving the buyback of subordinated liabilities.

(b) Financial assets and financial liabilities nosubsequently measured at fair value

For financial assets and financial liabilities whiare not subsequently measured at fair value efafance sheet, the
Group discloses their fair value in a way that pesithem to be compared to their carrying amoufii® methods and
assumptions used to calculate the fair valuesasfelassets and liabilities are set out on thepame.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabities (continued)

Loans and advances to banks

The estimated fair value of floating rate placerseartd overnight placings is their carrying amotitie estimated fair
value of fixed interest bearing placements is basedliscounted cash flows using prevailing moneyketainterest
rates for assets with similar credit risk and revimj maturity (level 2 inputs).

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are carried net of provisiongripairment. The fair value of both fixed and @dle rate loans

and advances to customers is estimated using i@iuathniques which include:

. the discounting of estimated future cash flows watrent market rates, incorporating the impact afrent
credit spreads and margins. The fair value refldei#h loan impairments at the balance sheet datie an
estimates of market participants’ expectationsreflit losses over the life of the loans (level Buts); and

. recent arm’s length transactions in similar aset&l 2 inputs).

Liabilities to banks

The estimated fair value of deposits with no statedurity, which includes non-interest bearing dg{o is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair valueterdiorrowings without quoted market prices is Hase discounted
cash flows using interest rates for new depositk similar remaining maturity (level 2 inputs).

Subordinated liabilities and other borrowed funds

The fair values of these instruments are calculatesd on quoted market prices where availablel(feinputs). In the
absence of quoted market prices the fair valualsutated based on quoted broker prices (levepats).

Property plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2013 the Group no longer holgigpamperty plant or equipment.

Group

At 31 December 201

Fair value of financial assets held at amoritisedasi
Loans and advances to ba
Loans and advances to custor

Fair value of financial liabilities held at amoritised cos
Liabilities to bank

Subordinated liabilitie

Other borrowed func

Company

At 31 December 201

Fair value of financial assets held at amoritisedasi
Loans and advances to ba

Fair value of financial liabilities held at amoritised cos
Liabilities to bank
Subordinated liabilitie
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Valuation Valuation
Quoted techniques techniques
prices in  observable unobservable
active market inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m
- 537.0 - 537.0
- - 5.8 5.8
- 537.0 5.8 542.8
- 450.5 - 450.5
- 21.4 - 21.4
- 35.5 - 35.5
- 507.4 - 507.4
Valuation Valuation
Quoted techniques techniques
prices in  observable unobservable
active market inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m
- 383.6 - 383.6
- 383.6 - 383.6
- 415.6 - 415.6
- 21.4 - 21.4
- 437.0 - 437.0




BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Measurement basis of financial assets and liabilis
The tables below analyses the carrying amountdefihancial assets and liabilities by accountirgatment and by

balance sheet heading:
Group

At 31 December 2013

Financial asset

Loans and advances to ba
Loans and advances to custor
Total financial asset:

Financial liabilities
Liabilities to bank
Subordinated liabilitie
Other borrowed func
Total financial liabilities

At 31 December 2012

Financial asset
Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Total financial asset:

Financial liabilities
Liabilities to bank
Subordinated liabilitie
Other borrowed func
Total financial liabilities

At fair value through
profit or loss

Held at amortised cost

Derivatives
designated a
fair value Held to
hedging Held for maturity Loans and
instruments trading investments  receivables Total
£m £m £m £m £m
- - - 567.0 567.0
- - - 6.6 6.6
- - - 573.¢ 573.€
- - - 451.2 451.2
- - - 26.7 26.7
- - - 32.6 32.6
510.f 510.t
Atfair "".’"“e through Held at amortised cost
profit or loss
Derivatives
designated a
fair value Held to
hedging Held for maturity Loans and
instruments trading investments  receivables Total
£m £m £m £m £m
- - - 598.0 598.0
- - - 14.0 14.0
- - - 612.( 612.(
- - - 486.2 486.2
- - - 26.1 26.1
- - - 32.6 32.6
544 ¢ 544.¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Measurement basis of financial assets and liabiliés (continued)

Company

At 31 December 2013

Financial asset
Loans and advances to ba
Total financial asset:

Financial liabilities
Liabilities to bank
Subordinated liabilitie
Total financial liabilities

At 31 December 2012

Financial asset
Loans and advances to ba
Total financial asset:

Financial liabilities
Liabilities to bank
Subordinated liabilitie
Total financial liabilities

Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc -

Company No: NI 006941

At fair value through profit

or loss Held at amortised cost
Derivatives
designated a
fair value
hedging Held for Loans and
instruments trading receivables Total
£m £m £m £m
- - 396.2 396.2
- - 396.2 396.2
- - 415.6 415.6
- - 26.7 26.7
- - 4423 4422

At fair value through profit

or loss Held at amortised cost
Derivatives
designated a
fair value

hedging Held for Loans and

instruments trading receivables Total

£m £m £m £m

- - 428.¢ 428.¢

- - 428.¢ 428.¢

- - 431.7 431.7

- - 26.1 26.1

- - 457.¢ 457.¢
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair Values of financial assets and liabilities

The table below analyses the fair values of tharfaial assets and liabilities by balance sheetihgad

Group 31 December 201 31 December 201
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Values Amount Values
£m £m £m £m
Asset:
Loans and advances to bai® 567.( 537.( 598.( 565.1
Loans and advances to custon® 6.6 5.8 14.C 13.C
Total asset 573.¢ 542.¢ 612.( 578.1
Liabilities
Liabilities to bank<? 451.2 450.F 486.2 485.(
Subordinated liabilitie® 26.7 21.4 26.1 16.2
Other borrowed fund® 32.€ 35.t 32.€ 32.¢
Total liabilities 510.t 507.¢ 544 ¢ 534.]

@ The fair values of these instruments are calcdlatsed on broker quoted prices.
@ The fair value of these financial assets andlitigs are calculated using discounted cashflows.

Company 31 December 201 31 December 201
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Values Amount Values
£m £m £m £m
Asset:
Loans and advances to bai® 396.2 383.6 428.6 416.3
Total asset 396.2 383.¢ 428.€ 416.:
Liabilities
Liabilities to bank<? 415.6 415.6 431.7 431.7
Subordinated liabilitie® 26.7 21.4 26.1 16.3
Total liabilities 442 437.( 457 .¢ 448.(

@ The fair values of these instruments are calcdlatesed on broker quoted prices.
@ The fair value of these financial assets andlitigs are calculated using discounted cashflows.

The Group and Company had no derivative assetalilities at 31 December 2013 or 31 December 2012.

The Group’s financial instruments comprise lendaryl savings products that arose in the course eofGtoup’s
ordinary activities, supported by wholesale finahcinstruments for funding and investment purposesse
instruments included deposits and debt and capisttuments. In addition, when required derivatfieancial
instruments are held for non-trading activitiesrtanage market and credit risks.

The principal risks and uncertainties arising frihia Group’s operations were credit risk (note 24idity risk (note
25), market risk and operational risk. The Groug hanimal residual foreign currency exposure.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss in the Group’s ime® or net worth arising from adverse change inrésterates,
exchange rates, or other market prices.

Market risk arises in customer facing banking uni@inly on the asset side of the balance sheetughrdixed rate
lending.

Market risk also arises where variable rate assedsliabilities re-price at different frequenciemaopthly, quarterly,
semi-annually) and where lending reprices with gegnin central bank rates but is funded at shagddanarket rates.
The latter is termed basis risk and while it hasagks been a feature of retail and commercial baykinis more
material now as the volatility of spreads betweent@l bank rates and short term market ratesasec significantly.

The Group recognises that the effective managewfemarket risk is essential to the maintenancetalble earnings,
the preservation of shareholder value and the aemment of the Group’s corporate objectives.

The Group considers that the two most significapeats of market risk for the Group are interets risk and foreign
currency risk. These are discussed in detail below.

The Group’s exposure to market risk is governegdlcy approved by the GRPC. This policy sets tat mature of
risk that may be taken, the types of financialrinstent that may be used to manage risk and theimvesich risk is
controlled.

The limit structure for controlling market risk assigned by the GRPC. Compliance with this strecisimonitored by
the Bank of Ireland Group Asset and Liability Cortteg.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that téufe cash flows of a financial instrument will dtuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value istei@e risk is the risk that the value of a firahinstrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interess.rdhterest rate risk arising from the Group’sding activities is
managed using fixed rate loans. As a result, thEaghof movement in interest rates is not significa

The Group employs a number of measures to quaantifiycontrol market risk. Because of the requirernéiihe Bank

of Ireland that business units eliminate their i@se rate risk with it, there is negligible intdreate risk in the Group.
Details of Market Risk Measurement are set outageg 114 to 117 of the Bank of Ireland Group’s AairReport for

the year ended 31 December 2013. A copy of thisrtepay be obtained from Bank of Ireland, 40 Me&il Dublin 4

or www.bankofireland.com.

Currency risk
Board Policy requires that all foreign currency esyre is hedged to de-minimis levels as it arises.

The Group has issued subordinated liabilities dénatad in Euro that are hedged with Euro curreneyns to Bank of
Ireland Group.

The Group’s policy is to avoid general intereserask and to match fund all currency positionsasoto ensure no
material currency exposure exists.

Operational Risk

The Group outsources its key operations to the Rdrkeland Group and, as a result, operation& isgsmanaged by
the Bank of Ireland Group. The Bank of Ireland Gramanages regulatory and compliance risk under emat
framework, which is implemented by accountable atiges, monitored by the GRPC, the Bank of Irel&@bup
Audit Committee, the Court Risk Committee and thheup Regulatory, Compliance and Operational Risknfitee
(‘GRCORC’), and supported by the GRCORC functiohe Effective management of regulatory and compéiaisk is
primarily the responsibility of business management

The Bank of Ireland Group has established a foapaloach to the management of regulatory and cang#irisk and
the objective is the identification, assessmentitoaing and management of regulatory and compéaisks.
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27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Capital management objectives and policies

Capital management for the Group is carried outha context of the Bank of Ireland Group’s capitednagement
policy.

The objectives of the Bank of Ireland Group’s calpihanagement policy are to at all times complyhwegulatory

capital requirements and to ensure that the Graspshfficient capital to cover the risks of its iness and support its
strategy. It seeks to minimise refinancing riskngnaging the maturity profile of non equity capitddilst the currency
mix of capital is managed to ensure that the seitgibf capital ratios to currency movements isnimised.

The following table sets out the Group’s and thenany’s capital resources (shareholders’ equity sufmbrdinated
liabilities):

Group
Shareholders’ equity 31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Total shareholders’ equ 44.€ 43.2
Undated loan capit 26.7 26.1
Total capital resource: 71.2 69.4
Company
Shareholders’ equity 31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m
Total shareholders’ equ 25.2 25.2
Undated loan capit 26.7 26.1
Total capital resource:! 52.C 51.4

The Group and Company are not regulated in their vght and do not have their own regulatory capéguirements.
28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
The table below gives the contract amounts of ogetit liabilities and commitments. The maximum esype to credit

loss under contingent liabilities and commitmergshe contractual amount of the instrument in thene of non-
performance by the other party where all countaints, collateral or security prove worthless.

31 December 201 31 December 201
Contract amount Contract amount
£m £m

Contingent liabilities
Guarantees and irrevocable letters of cr 0.2
Commitments

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines asttier

commitments to ler

-Irrevocable with an original maturity of over lay -

0.2

Guarantees and letters of credit are given as ibgdarsupport the performance of a customer todtipiarties. As the
Group will only be required to meet these obligasion the event of the customers default, the caghirements of
these instruments are expected to be consideraldwiiheir nominal amounts.

There is no contingent liability as at 31 Decen®@t3. The £0.2m contingent liability as at 31 Delben2012 related
to Bank of Ireland Business Finance Limited.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one pas$ytine ability to control the other party or exsecsignificant influence
over the other party in making financial or oparatdecisions, or one other party controls both. ddifinition includes
subsidiaries, the Parent, as well as other persons.

a) Ultimate Parent

The Group is a wholly controlled entity of The Gawaer and Company of the Bank of Ireland, a corponat
established in Ireland in 1783 under Royal Chani¢n a primary listing on the Irish Stock Excharged a premium
listing on the London Stock Exchange. This is thamate controlling party of the Group and Bankl#land Group.
Bank of Ireland Group financial statements arelabte at Bank of Ireland, Head Office, 40 Mespilad@pDublin 4.

The Group’s immediate Parent is Bol European HgsliSARL, a wholly owned subsidiary of The Goveraod
Company of Bank of Ireland.

The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland d¢iaen an undertaking that, as long as the Groupaines a
subsidiary of The Governor and Company of the Bafnkeland, it will provide all necessary funding the Group as
and when required.

b) Pledged Assets

A floating charge was registered over certain priypbeld by One Temple Quay Limited, a subsidiaoynpany, in
favour of the trustees of the Bank of Ireland SRénsions Fund. One Temple Quay Limited receivethdemnity
from the Governor and Company of the Bank of Irdlam respect of any liabilities and expenses agidiom the
floating charge created over the property heldtbifallowing the sale of this property to The Gowvarand Company
of the Bank of Ireland during the year, a deedetdase was received by One Temple Quay Limited franrustees of
the Bank of Ireland Staff Pensions Fund in respétiie floating charge over this property.

¢) Subsidiaries
Transactions between the Group and its subsidiatfs meet the definition of related party transsst A list of the
Group'’s principal subsidiary undertakings is shawnote 15.

d) Transactions with key management personnel

For the purposes of the Companies Act disclosibesctors mean the Board of Directors and any pasictors who
were Directors during the relevant period. For plueposes of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, ‘R@nagement
personnel’ (KMP) comprise the Directors of the Bhaany KMP of the ultimate Parent and any past KiMi® was a
KMP during the relevant period. Compensation of kegnagement personnel is paid by The Governor & fizamw of
Bank of Ireland. The Group provides a range ofisesvto related parties entered into in the nowoatse of business.
These included loans, deposits and foreign currénaagactions.

The Group receives a range of services from itsmdlie Parent and related parties, including loars deposits,
interest rate cover and various administrativeisesy

e) Transactions with Irish Government

The Irish Government, through the Bank of Irelantb@p’s participation in the Irish Credit Institutio (Eligible
Liabilities Guarantee) Scheme (the ‘ELG Scheme® #me investment by the Irish National Pension Resé&und
Commission in the 2009 Preference Stock of thentdite Parent up to 11 December 2013, is a relatag phthe
Group. The Group has no transactions with the @skernment during the year ended 31 December 20§1iBe year
ended 31 December 2012,

f) Taxation
Group relief was surrendered for reduced consiaeraluring the year ended 31 December 2012.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Amounts included in the accounts at 31 DecembeB 20hggregate, by category of related party arfelasvs:

Directors and key

Fellow Group

Group management personnel Ultimate Parent undertakings
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
201z 201z 201z 2012 201z 2012
Asset: £m £m £m £m £m £m
At the beginning of the year i i 486.9 513.8 111.1 113.2
Net amount
advanced/(repai - - 74.9 (26.9) (105.9) (2.1)
At the end of the year - - 561.8 486.9 5.2 111.1
Interest incom - - 4.9 8.0 - 0.2
Company Ultimate Parent Fellow Group Subsidiaries
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
201z 2012 201z 201z 201z 2012
Asset: £m £m £m £m £m £m
At the beginning of the year 196.8 311.0 i i 1718 218.1
Net amount
advanced/(repaid) 199.3 (114.2 0.1 (100.3 (46.3
At the end of the ye 396.1 196.8 0.1 - 71.t 171.¢
Interest incom 1.0 3.7 - - - -
Assets comprise loans and advances to banks (Bptndl other assets (note 17).
Directors and key Fellow Group
Group management personnel Ultimate Parent undertakings
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
201z 2012 201z 2012 201z 2012
Liabilities £m £m £m £m £m £m
At the beginning of the year i i 458 2 1,570.8 35.8 34.0
Net amount
advanced/(repai - - (7.2) (1,112.6) (35.6) 1.8
At the end of the ye - - 451.0 458.2 0.2 35.8
Interest expen: - - 0.6 2.8 - 0.4
Company Ultimate Parent Fellow Group Subsidiaries
31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe 31 Decembe
201z 2012 201z 2012 201z 2012
Liabilities £m £m £m £m £m £m
At the beginning of the year 308.2 434.4 i i 08 i
Net amount
advanced/(repai 107.4 (126.2) - - 0.9 0.8
At the end of the ye 415.6 308.2 - - 1.7 0.8

Interest expen: - - - -
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The assets are on both a secured and unsecuredihdsare expected to be settled in cash.

These assets are made on substantially the sateeiacand terms, including interest rates and teid, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactiaith other persons and did not involve more thanrbrmal risk of

collectability or present other unfavourable feagur

Other revenues received from Bank of Ireland Grenwiities are as follows:

31 December 201 31 December 201

£m £m

Net fee (expense)/incol .7 6.3
Net trading (expense)/income - (7.0)

Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 31 DoetEmoluments.
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, aasttash equivalents comprise the following balamzés less than
three months maturity from the date of acquisition:

Group Company
31 December 201 31 December 201 31 December 201 31 December 201
£m £m £m £m
Loans and advances to 48.3 1415 53 105.5

banks (note 1.

31. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
No Directors exercised share options during the gaded 31 December 2013 or in the year ended 8&rblger 2012.

No Directors received Bank of Ireland shares uradEmg-term incentive scheme during the year ergle®ecember
2013 or the year ended 31 December 2012.

There were no retirement benefits accruing to Minecfrom the Group under defined benefit schemé&d &ecember
2013 or 31 December 2012.

No compensation for loss afffice in respect of former Directors was paid b tGroup and no excess retirement
benefits in respect of Directors and former Direstavere paid during the year ended 31 December 201Be year
ended 31 December 2012,

The Directors do not receive any Directors’ feeseispect of the services provided to the compahg. @moluments of
the Directors of the Group are paid by the BanKkrefand Group. A copy of the Bank of Ireland Grofipancial
statements may be obtained from Bank of Irelandyi48pil Road, Dublin 4 or www.bankofireland.com! Birectors
are Directors of a number of subsidiaries of Barfikireland Group and it is not possible to make @gusate
apportionment of their emoluments in respect oheafcthe subsidiaries. Accordingly no Directors’ @oments have
been separately disclosed for any of the Diredtoteese financial statements.

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 14 February 2014, a court judgment was issuetiibfa in favour of HMRC in respect of an appehat Bristol &
West plc, a subsidiary company, had taken agamstaerse court judgment issued in 2013 in relaton tax dispute
involving that company. Both parties have decidedppeal this decision, having been granted pelonige appeal the
judgment to the Court of Appeal. After taking irstocount available group relief, full provision cionies to be made in
these consolidated financial statements for theebga tax and interest arising to this Group pemdifinal decision.
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33. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The following section covers potential elementghaf remuneration packages for employees, includwegutives, of
the Bank of Ireland Group. The information belowéspect of share based payment schemes are gegeiituro.

Use of ordinary shares in employee schemes
(a) Employee Stock Issue Scheme

Under this scheme, each year the Court of Direabfithe Governor and Company of Bank of Ireland rsetyaside an
element of Bank of Ireland Group profit before tiéoa for allocation to the trustees of the schemenable them to
acquire units of ordinary stock on behalf of theesoe participants.

In addition, if an employee elects for the freecktaward, they become eligible to purchase additistock at market
price from gross salary subject to Revenue Comonisss and HMRC rules respectively.

The maximum award permitted under the scheme iso6% participant’'s salary. There have been no asvaod
employees under the employee stock issue scheice 2008.

(b) Executive Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

The last grant of options under the scheme wereenra@008. Options granted in 2006, 2007 and 2608dd as the
performance conditions were not achieved. The pedioce conditions for options granted in 1996 uartd including

2005 were satisfied. Options may not be transfeoregissigned and may be exercised only betweethifteand tenth

anniversaries of their grant. No options were eitiranted or exercised in the year ended 31 Dece@i3 or in the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Under this scheme, which was approved by stockhsldey executives may be granted options to siiesfor units
of ordinary stock at the discretion of the RemutieraCommittee. Under this scheme, the total valfi@ptions
granted in a year may not exceed 100% of an execstannual salary at the time of the award. THessuption price
per unit of stock shall not be less than the mavkkie of the stock at the date of grant.

The options below are before the Bank of Irelandups 2010 and 2011 Rights Issues. The Bank ofnidetaroup’s
Remuneration Committee exercised its discretiontmotake any technical adjustments to these grants.

31 December 201 31 December 201
Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average
options exercise price (€) options exercise price (€)
Outstanding at beginning of yt 2,686,51. 11.4¢ 3,113,51. 11.5¢
Expired during ye: (1,456,499 11.17 (427,000 12.4¢
Outstanding at end of ye 1,230,01 11.7¢ 2,686,51. 11.4¢
Exercisable at end of ye 1,230,01 11.7¢ 2,686,51. 11.4¢
Exercise Price Range (€) Number of Options
10.76 — 13.68 1,230,014
Total 1,230,014

Outstanding options under the Stock Option Scherseeaercisable at price ranges above. The weigatedage
remaining contractual life of the outstanding opfiainder the Stock Option Scheme is less than jleaes.

(c) Limitations on Employee Stock Issue and Stock @ion Schemes

All of the above stock issue and stock option sa®mre subject to a range of flow rate controls@apa by the
stockholders and which conform to current institnél investor guidelines.
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34. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of BOI &hgan Holdings SARL, The Governor and Company ef th
Bank of Ireland is the parent company of BOI Euapéloldings SARL, and therefore the Ultimate PamdrBank of
Ireland UK Holdings. These financial statements im@uded in the consolidated accounts of The Gomerand
Company of the Bank of Ireland. BOI European Haddil®BARL does not prepare consolidated accountepé of the
Bank of Ireland Group financial statements may b&aioed from Bank of Ireland, 40 Mespil Road, Dab#i or
www.bankofireland.com

Registered office of Bank of Ireland UK Holdings pl
Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc

1 Donegall Square South

Belfast

BT15LR

Northern Ireland

35. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors approved the financial steets on 10 April 2014.
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